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Report on compliance and on internal control over financial reporting
based on an audit of financial statements performed in accerdance with
Government Auditing Standards

December 22, 2003

To the Board of Education:

We have audited the basic financial statements of the Loveland City School District, (the
District), as of and for the year ended June 30, 2003, and have issued our report thereon dated
December 22, 2003, wherein we noted the District adopted Government Accounting Standards
Board 34, 37 and 38 and Government Accounting Standards Board Interpretation No. 6. We
conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America, and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government
Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States.

Compliance

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the District’s basic financial statements

are free of material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of

laws, regulations, contracts and grants, noncompliance with which could have a direct and

material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an

opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit and, accordingly,

we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of non-

compliance required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards. However, we noted

certain immaterial instances of noncompliance that we have reported to management of the .
District in a separate letter dated December 22, 2003.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In‘planning and performing our audit, we considered the District’s internal control over financial
reporting in order to determine our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinion
on the basic financial statements and not to provide assurance on the internal control over
financial reporting. Our consideration of the internal control over financial reporting would not
necessarily disclose all matters in the internal control over financial reporting that might be
material weaknesses. A material weakness is a condition in which the design or operation of one
or more of the internal control components does not reduce to a relatively low level the risk that
misstatements in amounts that would be material in relation to the basic financial statements
being audited may occur and not be detected within a timely period by employees in the normal



course of performing their assigned functions. We noted no matters involving the internal
control over financial reporting and its operation that we consider to be material weaknesses.

This report is intended solely for the information and use of the audit committee, management,
the Board of Education, federal awarding agencies and pass-through entities and is not intended
to be and should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties.

Plattenburg & B6sociates, Inc
Certified Public Accountants
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Report on compliance with requirements applicable to each major program and internal
control over compliance in accordance with OMB Circular A-133

December 22, 2003

To the Board of Education:;

Compliance

We have audited the compliance of the Loveland City School District, (the District) with the
types of compliance requirements described in the U.S. Office of Management and Budget
(OMB) Circular A-133 Compliance Supplement that are applicable to each of its major federal
programs for the year ended June 30, 2003. The District’s major federal programs are identified
in the summary of auditor’s results portion of the accompanying schedule of findings and
questioned costs. Compliance with the requirements of laws, regulation, contracts and grants
applicable to each of its major federal programs is the responsibility of the District’s
management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the District’s compliance based on
our audit.

We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted
in the United States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in
Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; and
OMB Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations.
Those standards and OMB Circular A-133 require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance with the types of compliance requirements
referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on a major federal program
occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about the District’s compliance
with those requirements and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the
circumstances. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion, Our audit
does not provide a legal determination of the District’s compliance with those requirements.

In our opinion, the District complied, in all material respects, with the requirements referred to
above that are applicable to each of its major federal programs for the year ended June 30, 2003.



Internal Control Over Compliance

The management of the District is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal
control over compliance with the requirements of laws, regulations, contracts and grants
applicable to federal programs. In planning and performing our audit, we considered the
District’s internal control over compliance with requirements that could have a direct and
material effect on a major federal program in order to determine our auditing procedures for the
purpose of expressing our opinion on compliance and to test and report on the internal control
over compliance in accordance with OMB Circular A-133.

Our consideration of the internal control over compliance would not necessarily disclose all
matters in the internal control that might be material weaknesses. A material weakness is a
condition in which the design or operation of one or more of the internal control components
does not reduce to a relatively low level the risk that noncompliance with applicable
requirements of laws, regulations, contracts and grants that would be material in relation to a
major federal program being audited may occur and not be detected within a timely period by
employees in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, We noted no matters
involving the internal control over compliance and its operation that we consider to be material
weaknesses.

Schedule of Federal Awards Expenditures

We have audited the basic financial statements of the District as of and for the year ended June
30, 2003, and have issued our report thereon dated December 22, 2003. Our audit was
performed for the purpose of forming an opinion on the basic financial statements taken as a
whole. The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards is presented for purposes
of additional analysis as required by OMB Circular A-133 and is not a required part of the basic
financial statements. Such information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in
the audit of the basic financial statements and, in our opinion, is fairly stated, in all material
respects, in relation to the basic financial statements taken as a whole.

This report is intended solely for the information and use of the audit committee, management,
the Board of Education, federal awarding agencies and pass-through entities and is not intended
to be and should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties.

%géi Ny PV
Plattenburg& Assdciates, Inc,
Certified Public Accountants



LOVELAND CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT

SCHEDULE OF FEDERAL AWARDS EXPENDITURES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED June 30, 2003

o

Federal Grant/ Pass Through Federal
Pass Through Grantor Entity CFDA Non-Cash Non-Cash
Program Title Number Number Receipts Receipts Disbursements  Disbursements
U.S. DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE
Passed Through Ohio Department of Education;
Child Nutrition Cluster;
National School Lunch Program 04-PU 10,555 $103,964 $0 $103,964 $0
Total U,S. Department of Agriculture - Child Nutrition Cluster 103,964 0 103,964 0
Food Distribution Program 03-PU 10.550 0 56,676 0 56,676
Total U,S., Department of Agriculture - Nutrition Cluster 103,964 56,676 103,964 56,676
U.S. DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION
Passed Through Ohio Department of Education;
Special Education Cluster:
Title VI - B Grant 6B-SF 84,027 274,661 0 346,537
Preschool Grant PG-S1 84.173 3,663 0 13,083 0
Total U.S, Special Education Cluster 278,324 0 359,620 0
Eisenhower Grant MS-S1 84.281 1,576 0 11,238 0
Title I Grant C1-S0 84,010 226,592 0 229,785 0
Title VI C2-S1 84,298 14,454 0 39,112 0
Tech Literacy TF-S1 84,318 1,838 0 1,907 0
Drug Free Schools Grant DR-S1" 84,186 16,394 0 32,760 0
Assistant Tech, Infusion * 84,352 20,488 0 20,488 0
Improving Teacher Quality - * 84.367 66,592 0 78,348 0
Harvard Conference * 84.276 0 0 9,525 0
Total Department of Education 626,258 0 782,783 0
Total Federal Assistance $730,222 $56,676 $886,747 $56,676

NOTES TO SCHEDULE OF FEDERAL AWARDS EXPENDITURES

NOTE A -- SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The accompanying schedule of federal awards expenditures is a summary of the activity of the District's federal award programs. The schedule

has been prepared on the cash basis of accounting,

NOTE B - FOOD DISTRIBUTION

Nonmonetary assistance is reported in the schedule at the fair market value of the commodities received and disbursed, Monies are commingled

with state grants, and it is assumed that federal monies are expended first,

* Information unavailable
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LOVELAND CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT

June 30, 2003

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS

' OMB CIRCULAR A-133 SECTION .505

1. SUMMARY OF AUDITOR'S RESULTS

Type of Financial Statement Opinion

Were there any material control weakness
conditions reported at the financial
statement level (GAGAS)?

Were there any other reportable control weakness

conditions reported at the financial
statement level (GAGAS)?

Was there any reported material non-compliance

at the financial statement level (GAGAS)?
Were there any material internal control
weakness conditions reported for major
federal programs?

Were the any other reportable internal control
weakness conditions reported for major
federal programs?

Type of Major Programs' Compliance Opinion

Are there any reportable findings under
Section .5107

Major Programs (list):

Dollar Threshold: Type A/B Programs

Low Risk Auditee?

Unqualified

No

No

No

No

Unqualified

No

Special Education Cluster

Type A: > $300,000
Type B: all others

Yes

2. FINDINGS RELATED TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REQUIRED TO BE REPORTED IN ACCORDANCE WITH GAGAS

None Noted

3. FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS FOR FEDERAL AWARDS

None Noted



LOVELAND CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT
JUNE 30, 2003

SCHEDULE OF PRIOR AUDIT AND QUESTIONED COSTS
OMB CIRCULAR A-133

Loveland City School District had no prior audit findings or questioned costs,
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Loveland City School District

757 S, Lebanon Road ¢ Loveland, Chio 45140
Telephone (513) 683-5600
Fax (513) 683-5697

December 22, 2003

To The Citizens and Board of Education
of the Loveland City School District:

The Comprehensive Annual Financial Report [CAFR] of the Loveland City School District
[District] for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2003, is hereby submitted. This report, prepared by
the Treasurer's office, includes an opinion from the Auditor of State and conforms to Generally
Accepted Accounting Principles (GAAP) as applicable to governmental entities. Responsibility
for both the accuracy of the data presented and the completeness and faimess of the presentation,
including all disclosures, rests with the District. This report will provide the taxpayers of the
Loveland City School District with comprehensive financial data in a format, which will enable
them to gain an understanding of the District’s financial affairs. Copies will be available upon
request to taxpayers, financial rating services, banking institutions and other interested parties.

The Comprehensive Annual Financial Report is divided into three sections:

The Introductory Section includes a table of contents, this transmittal letter, a list of
principal officials, the District's organization chart, the GFOA and ASBO certificates the
District received for the June 30, 2002 CAFR. Also included are the District's major
current and future initiatives.

The Financial Section includes the independent accountants' report on the financial
statements, management's discussion and analysis, basic financial statements, notes to the
basic financial statements, and the combining statements for nonmajor funds and other
schedules that provide detailed information relative to the basic financial statements.

The Statistical Section inciudes selective financial, economic and demographic
information, generally presented on a multi-year basis for comparative purposes.

The District provides a full range of traditional and non-traditional educational programs and
services. These include elementary and secondary curricutum offerings at the general, college
preparatory and career-technical levels; a broad range of cocumicular and extracurricular
activities; and special education programs.

The District receives pass through grants from the State and distributes these grants to
parochial/private schools located within the District. This activity is included in the entity as the
Auxiliary Services Special Revenue Fund, because of the District's administrative involvement
in the program. The parochial/private schools served are: St. Columban and Children’s Meeting
House Montessori School. While these organizations share operational and service similarity
with the District, each is a legally separate and distinct entity. Because of their independent
nature, none of these organizations are included in this report.
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ECONOMIC CONDITION AND OUTLOOK

The District is just northeast of the city of Cincinnati. The School’s community lies in the
corners of the counties of Hamilton, Clermont and Warren and is comprised of approximately
10.6 square miles. The District surrounds the City of Loveland and overlaps portions of the
townships of Symmes, Miami, Hamilton and Goshen.

Property tax revenues of the residential/agricultural class predominantly support Loveland City
Schools. Through the continued conversion of agricultural land into upscale residential
properties being inhabited by well-educated upper middle-class families, Loveland City Schools
is secure in its economic future in that the community understands and supports the value of
education not just for sustaining property values, but because of the intrinsic value it has brought
to their own lives and their desire to insure this for the children.

The District is as stable as the region in which the community works. Since Loveland City
Schools is the largest employer within the District’s boundaries, it is safe to say that the
District’s economic stability is as broad based as the businesses in Cincinnati and surrounding
areas, which employ these taxpayers.

The District is continually challenged by the responsibility bestowed upon it by the community
at large. We are always striving to provide the very best opportunities to every student, while
carefully guarding the District's resources.

THE DISTRICT AND ITS FACILITIES

During the 2002-2003 school year, the District served 4,175 students enrolled in 3 elementary
schools, 1 intermediate school, 1 middle school and 1 high school. This enrollment increased by
54 students from the 2001-2002 school year. The preliminary enrollment for the 2003-2004
school year is 4,194, an increase of 19 students.

: OCTOBER 2003
CONSTRUCTED SCHOOL ADDRESS ENROLLMENT
1963 Loveland Early Childhood Center 479
6740 Loveland Miamiville Road
1957 Loveland Primary School 614
550 Loveland Maderia Road
1941 Loveland Elementary School 629
600 Loveland Madeira Road
2000 Loveland Intermediate School 665
757 South Lebanon Road
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1962 Loveland Middle School 652
801 South Lebanon Road '

1992 Loveland High School 1,155
1 Tiger Trail

ORGANIZATION OF THE SCHOOL DISTRICT

The Board of Education is a 5 member body politic and corporate, as defined by Section 3313.02
of the Ohio Revised Code. The Board serves as the taxing authority, contracting body, policy
maker and ensures that all the general laws of the State of Ohio are followed in the expenditures
of the District’s tax dollars and approves the annual appropriation resolution and tax budget.

The Board members represent a cross section of professions in the community. The board
members on June 30, 2003, were as follows:

BOARD MEMBER BEGAN SERVICE TERM EXPIRES PROFESSION
Dr. Judy McClanahan Januvary, 1998 December, 2005 Homemaker
Mrs. Linda Pennington January, 1996 December, 2005 Homemaker
Dr. Kathryn Lorenz November, 1991 December, 2007 Professor
Dr. James L. Kolp January, 2000 December, 2007 Physician
Mrs. Christine Olsen January, 2002 December, 2005 Business

. Manager

The Superintendent is the chief executive officer of the District and responsible directly to the
Board of Education for educational and support operations. Dr. Kevin Boys was appointed
Superintendent in July of 2002. Prior to his appointment in Loveland, Dr. Boys served as a
teacher, principal, and assistant superintendent in Sycamore Community School District for 23
years. Dr. Boys graduated summa cum laude from the University of Cincinnati, received a
Master of Education degree from Xavier University and earmned his doctorate degree in
Educational Leadership from Miami University.
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The Treasurer is the chief financial officer of the District who reports directly to the Board of
Education. The Treasurer/CFO is responsible for maintaining all financial records, issuing all
payments, maintaining custody of all District funds and assets and investing idle funds as
specified by Ohio law. Ms. Manville spent the first four years of her career as Assistant Auditor
with the State of Ohio. The next four years of her career were spent in the corporate sector as
Senior Assistant/Buyer for Honda International Trade. In 1994, she accepted the position of
Treasurer of Triad Local School District in North Lewisburg, Ohio. In March of 1999, she was
selected Treasurer/CFQO of Loveland City School District. Ms. Manville holds a Bachelor of
Science Degree in Business Administration from Urbana University. In 1997, she was inducted
in Sigma Beta Delta’s National Honor Society in Business, Management and Administration.
Ms. Manville graduated from the Ohio Association of School Business Officials Leadership
Academy in November of 2003.

EMPLOYEE RELATIONS

The District currently has approximately 634 full-time employees. The number of employees has
been steady for the last several years. During the 2003 fiscal year, the District paid from its
General Fund $18,076,182 in salaries and wages, and $5,662,582 in fringe benefits, such as
retirement contributions, workers’ compensation and life and health benefits.

The District's teachers are represented for collective bargaining purposes by the Loveland
Education Association [LEA]. The District has a collective bargaining agreement with LEA
which expires June 30, 2004. The District's classified employees are represented for collective
bargaining purposes by the Ohio Association of Public School Employees [OAPSE]. The
District has a collective bargaining apreement with OAPSE which expires June 30, 2004.

SERVICES PROVIDED

The District provides a wide variety of educational and support services, as mandated by the
Ohio Revised Code or board directives.

Transportation is provided for over 5,579 students each day. The District fleet of 68 buses
travels over 3,291 miles each day transporting to 23 different sites. In addition to making more
than 272 daily runs, the department transported both public and non-public students on 1,418
extracurricular trips during the year.

The food service department served 190,436 plate lunches through the District’s five kitchens.
This is accomplished through the full operation of three kitchens (one kitchen services two
adjoining buildings, each having their own dining room) and two satellite sites.

In addition to transportation and school lunch support services, students in the District also
receive guidance, psychological and limited health services free of charge. The guidance services
are designed to help students match their natural skills with vocational and/or academic
programs to help them achieve their full potential in life. Psychological services include the
testing and identification of students for special education services.



Health services are provided by district registered nurses and health aides at each of the six
schoot sites. |

The District offers regular instructional programs daily to students in grades K-12. There are
approximately 43 students in the specific trades through career-technical education. Over 350
students receive special services, due to identified disabilities. In grades 3-8, approximately 120
students participated in the gifted program. The District presented 268 high school diplomas in
2003. .

LOVELAND SCHOOLS

FOCUS STATEMENT

Loveland School District provides the experiences that empower each student to develop and use
personal strengths to maximize individual potential.

Loveland Schools will continue to:
o Foster individual achievement according to desires, needs, interests and abilities
o Demonstrate flexibility in creatively meeting the needs of the school community
» Prioritize the allocation of resources accordingly

This is demonstrated by designation of academic “excellence”, success of individual students,
and continued financial support of the community.

LOVELAND SCHOOLS GUIDING PRINCIPLES
Student academic achievement is our primary product.

We are student focused

We seek to be recognized for student academic achievement
We inspire and enable students in academic achievement
We affirm students for academic performance

We build cooperative relationships with all parties who contribute to fulfilling our purpose. This
includes students, staff, parents and community.

Interests of school and community are inseparable and interdependent

We show respect for all individuals and work to build confidence &nd trust

We develop close, mutually productive, cooperative relationships with the community
We communicate clearly, broadly and honestly with all stakeholders

We are a learning community:
e We believe that it is the responsibility of all individuals to continually develop
themselves and other members of the learning community
We value personal achievement
We value professional achievement
We recognize achievement is broader than academics alone
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Ideas and concepts are evaluated as they relate to our vision and strategies:
e Both innovative and proven programs will contribute to the success of Loveland
schools
o Research data is used to evaluate programs prior to their implementation
Benchmarks are used to evaluate the performance of ongoing programs
s Flexibility is an important aspect for the use of resources in our school system

SUMMARY OF RESULTS

For the third consecutive year, the Loveland City School District has earned the designation of
“Excellent” on the Ohio Department of Education’s state report card. The District also improved
or maintained scores in 16 out of the 22 areas rated.

Each school district in Ohio is also given a performance index score. For each subject area in
grades 4 and 6, students receive one of four performance levels (below basic, basic, proficient
and advanced). The performance index score represents the achievement of all students on all
five subject areas of the proficiency tests and creates a scale of 0-120. Loveland’s performance
index score is 98.3.

Under the federal “No Child Left Behind™ legislation, the final goal for all students is to reach
the proficient Jevel in reading and mathematics by 2013-14. Until then, yearly goals are set
requiring a specific percentage of students in 10 sub-groups, such as African American,
Hispanic, White and those with special education needs on an Individualized Education Plan
(IEP), to reach proficiency in these subjects. If any goal in any one of these sub-groups is
missed, the district does not meet Adequate Yearly Progress (AYP) for the year. Loveland did
not meet AYP for the 2002-03 school year because the IEP sub-group did not meet a proficiency
level in mathematics. Appropriate intervention will focus on reaching this goal for 2003-04.

In order to maintain excellence, meet AYP, and continue to demonstrate to our stakeholders a
strong return on its investment in our schools, the Board identified six goals to be initiated during
the 2003-2004 school year:

GOALS

I. The District will pass an operating levy to fund identified critical needs of the school
district by December 31, 2004.

2. The District will support classroom instruction by providing technology training and
resources.

3. The District will examine ways to leverage the effective use of time.

4. The District will establish an active strategic curriculum plan that ensures a
curriculum that is relevant, engaging, and articulated to state and national standards.
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5. The District will provide research-based, age-appropriate intervention for all students
with identified needs.

6. The District will provide adequate guidance staffing and services to meet the
emotional, social and academic needs of each student.

BUSINESS-SCHOOL PARTNERSHIP PROGRAM

Partners in Education is a program that brings together businesses and schools in order to address
specific educational needs. The business-school partnerships are formal, voluntary relationships
between one school and one business. Partnerships match available resources with identified
needs to meet mutually agreed upon goals and objectives. Partnerships also give those in the
business community insight into the workings of the school and a better understanding of the
needs of the educational system.

Loveland Schools enjoy a parinership with International Paper Company. Students have
benefited from International Paper’s support of science labs, environmental educational
programs, an elementary library and professional development for teachers and administration.

For a more in-depth analysis of the District’s current economic condition, please see the
Management Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) portion of the report in the Financial Section.

FINANCIAL INFORMATION

The District's accounting system is organized on a "fund" basis. Each fund is a distinct, self-
balancing entity. Records for general governmental operations are maintained on a budgetary
basis system of accounting as prescribed by State statute. Cash basis accounting differs from
generally accepted accounting principles [GAAP] as promulgated by the Governmental
Accounting Standards Board [GASB].

INTERNAL ACCOUNTING AND BUDGETARY CONTROL

In developing the District's accounting system, much consideration was given to the adequacy of

internal accounting controls. Internal accounting controls are designed to provide reasonable, but

not absolute, assurance regarding: (1) the safeguarding of assets against loss from unauthorized

use or disposition and (2) the reliability of financial records for preparing financial statements -
and maintaining accountability for assets. The concept of reasonable assurance is based on the

assumption that the cost of internal accounting controls should not exceed the benefits expected

to be derived from their implementation.

The District utilizes a fully automated accounting system as well as an automated system of
control for fixed assets and payroll. These systems, coupled with the manual auditing of each
voucher prior to payment, ensures that the financial information generated is both accurate and
reliable.
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At the beginning of each fiscal year, the Board adopts either a temporary appropriation measure
or a permanent appropriation measure for that fiscal year. If a temporary appropriation is first
adopted, the permanent appropriation measure must be adopted within three months.

Annual appropriations may not exceed the County Budget Commission's official estimate of
resources. The County Auditor must certify that the Board's appropriation measures, including
any supplements or amendments, do not exceed the amount set forth in the latest of those official
estimates.

All disbursements and transfers of cash between funds require appropriation authority from the
Board. Budgets are controlled at the fund level. All purchase order requests must be approved by
the individual program managers and certified by the Treasurer; necessary funds are then
encumbered and purchase orders are released to vendors.

The accounting system used by the District provides financial reports, which detail year-to-date
expenditures and encumbrances versus the original appropriation plus any additional
appropriations made to date. In addition to the financial statements retained in the Treasurer’s
Office, each program manager can monitor their budgets by running interim financial reports.

As an additional safeguard, a blanket bond covers all employees involved with receiving and
depositing funds and a separate, higher bond covers certain individuals in policy-making roles.

The basis of accounting and the various funds utilized by the District are fully described in the
notes to the basic financial statements. Additional information on the District's budgetary
accounts can also be found in the notes to the basic financial statements.

CASH MANAGEMENT

The Board has an aggressive cash management program which consists of expediting the receipt
of revenues and prudently investing available cash in obligations collateralized by the United
States Government, or the State of Ohto issued instruments or insured by the Federal Deposit
Insurance Corporation [FDIC]. The total amount of earnings on investments was $382,198 for
the year ended June 30, 2003.

The cash management program is designed to minimize cash on hand and maximize investment
holdings. All investments are spread among available investment options to insure maximum
interest rates.

The District's investment policy is to minimize market risk while maintaining a competitive yield
on its portfolio. Accordingly, deposits were either insured by FDIC or collateralized. By law,
financial institutions may establish a collateral pool to cover all public deposits. The face value
of the pooled collateral must equal at least 110 percent of public funds deposited. Coliateral is
held by trustees including the Federal Reserve Bank and designated third party trustees of the
financial institutions.
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RISK MANAGEMENT

The District continues to protect its assets through a comprehensive insurance program. A
schedule of insurance in force at June 30, 2003 is included in the Notes to the Basic Financial
Statements.

INDEPENDENT AUDIT

This report includes financial statements and supplemental schedules which have been audited
by Plattenburg & Associates, Inc., a firm of independent Certified Public Accountants. The
report of independent accountants of Plattenburg & Associates, Inc., specifies the scope of their
audit, the use of generally accepted auditing standards and the conformity of generally accepted
accounting principles, and concludes that these financial statements present fairly the financial
position of the District.

AWARDS
GFOA Certificate of Achievement

The Government Finance Officers Association of the United States and Canada (GFOA)
awarded a Certificate of Achievement to the District for its comprehensive arnnual financial
report for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2002. The Certificate of Achievement is a prestigious
national award recognizing conformance with the highest standards for preparation of state and
local government financial reports.

In order to be awarded a Certificate of Achievement, a govemment unit must publish an easily
readable and efficiently organized Comprehensive Annual Financial Report, whose contents
conform to program standards. Such reports must satisfy both Generally Accepted Accounting
Principles (GAAP) and applicable legal requirements.

A Certificate of Achievement is valid for a period of one year only. We believe our current
report continues to conform to the Certificate of Achievement program requirements, and we are
submitting it to the GFOA.

ASBO Certificate

The Association of School Business Officials International [ASBO] awards a Certificate of
Excellence in Financial Reporting to school districts that publish Comprehensive Annual
Financial Reports which substantially conform to the principles and standards of financial
reporting as recommended and adopted by the Association of School Business Officials. The
award is granted only after an intensive review of the financial report by all expert panels of
certifted public accountants and practicing school business officials.



The District received the Certificate of Excellence in Financial Reporting for the fiscal year
ended June 30, 2002. The District believes that the Comprehensive Annual Financial Report for
fiscal year June 30, 2003, which will be submitted to ASBO for review, will conform to ASBO's
principles and standards.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS

The preparation of the 2003 Comprehensive Annual Financial Report of the Loveland City
School District was made possible by the combined efforts of the District's Finance Department
and Plattenburg and Associates, Incorporated. The publication of this Comprehensive Annual
Financial Report for the District is a major step in reinforcing the accountability of the District to
the taxpayers of the community.

Respectfully submitted,

Jill D. Manville
Treasurer/CFO
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Certificate of
Achievement
for Excellence
in Financial
Reporting

Presented to

ILoveland City School
District, Ohio

For its Cbmpre.hehsive Annual
' Financial Report
for the Fiscal Year Ended
June 30, 2002 -

A Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial
Reporting is presented by the Government Finance Officers
Association of the United States and Canada to
government units and public employee retirernent
systems whose comprehensive annual financial
reports (CAFRs) achieve the highest
standards in government accounting
and financial reporting.

Gy £ G-

- Executive Director
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PLATTENBURG & ASSOCIATES, INC./CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

8260 NORTHCREEK DRIVE, SUTTE 330/ CINCINNATI, OH 45236 - (513) 891-2722 - FAX (513) 851-2760
3931 SOUTH DIXIE DRIVE / DAYTON, OH 45439 - (937) 294-1505 » FAX (937) 254-1507

December 22, 2003
REPORT OF INDEPENDENT ACCOUNTANTS

To the Board of Education:

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities,
the business-type activities, each major fund and the aggregate remaining fund
information of the Loveland City School District, (the District) as of and for the year
ended June 30, 2003, which collectively comprise the District’s basic financial statements
as listed in the table of contents. These financial statements are the responsibility of the
District's management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial
statements based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the
United States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in
Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States.
Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An
audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting
principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the
overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable
basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material
respects, the respective financial position of the governmental activities, the business-
type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the
Loveland City School District, as of June 30, 2003 and, the respective changes in
financial position and cash flows, where applicable, for the year then ended in conformity
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

As described in the notes, during the year ended June 30, 2003, the District implemented
a new financial reporting model, as required by the provisions of Governmental
Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 34, Basic Financial Statements — and
Management's Discussion and Analysis — for State and Local Governmenis;
Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 37, Basic Financial
Statements for State and Local Governments: Omnibus; Governmental Accounting
Standards Board Statement No. 38, Certain Financial Statement Note Disclosures; and
Governmental Accounting Standards Board Interpretaion No. 6, Recognition and
Measurement of Certain Liabilities and Expenditures in Governmental Fund Financial
Statements. '



In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated
December 22, 2003 on our consideration of the District's internal control over financial
reporting and our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations,
contracts and grants. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance
with Government Auditing Standards and should be read in conjunction with this report
in considering the results of our audit.

Required Supplementary Information

The Management's Discussion and Analysis and the budgetary information, listed in the
table of contents as required supplementary information, is not a required part of the
basic financial statements but is supplementary information required by the accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America. We have applied certain
limited procedures, which consisted principally of inquiries of management regarding the
methods of measurement and presentation of the supplementary information. However,
we did not audit the information and express no opinion on it.

Combining Financial Statements and Individual Fund Schedules

Our audit was performed for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial
statements that collectively comprise the District’s basic financial statements. The
accompanying information identified in the table of contents as combining and individual
nonmajor fund financial statements is presented for purposes of additional analysis and is
not a required part of the basic financial statements. The combining and individual
nonmajor fund financial statements have been subjected to the auditing procedures
applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and, in our opinion, are fairly stated
in all material respects in relation to the basic financial statements taken as a whole.

Introductory and Statistical Sections

The information identified in the table of contents as the Introductory and Statistical
Sections is presented for purposes of additional analysis and is not a required part of the
basic financial statements of the District. Such information has not be subjected to the
auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and,
accordingly, we express no opinion thereon.

%ﬁ@ﬁaté& Inc. "’ér %f.

Certified Public Accountants



LOVELAND CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2003
(Unaudited)

The discussion and analysis of Loveland City School District’s financial performance provides an overall
review of the District’s financial activities for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2003. The intent of this
discussion and analysis is to look at the District’s financial performance as a whole; readers should also
review the transmittal letter, notes to the basic financial statements and financial statements to enhance
their understanding of the District’s performance.

The Management’s Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) is an element of the new reporting model adopted
by the Governmental Accounting Standard Board (GASB) in their Statement No. 34 Basic Financial
Statements — and Management’s Discussion and Analysis — for State and Local Government issued June,
1999. Certain comparative information between the current year and the prior year is required to be
presented in the MD&A. However, because this is the first year of implementing the new reporting
model, certain necessary comparative information of the previous year was not prepared. Considering the
financial resources necessary to prepare this information for the prior year, and that the GASB Statement
No. 34 permits the omission of the comparative information in the first year of adoption of the new
reporting model, the Board has elected to exclude the information in this report. Subsequent reports will
include the comparative information.

Financial Highlights
Key financial highlights for 2003 are as follows:

¢ In total, net assets increased $5.58 million. Net assets of governmental activities increased $5.57
million which represents a 34.7% increase from 2002. Net assets of business-type activities
increased $0.007 million or 1.6% from 2002,

e General revenues accounted for $36.98 million in revenue or 91.2% of all revenues. Program
specific revenues in the form of charges for services and sales, grants and contributions accounted for
$3.58 million or 8.8% of total revenues of $40.56 million.

e Total assets of governmental activities increased by $2.66 million as taxes receivable increased by $0.87
million and cash and other receivables increased by $2.25 million.

» The District had $34.09 million in expenses related to governmental activities; $2.68 million of these
expenses were offset by program specific charges for services, grants or contributions. General
revenues of $36.98 million were adequate to provide for these programs.

* As the major funds, the General Fund had $32.86 million in revenues and $29.58 million in
expenditures. The General Fund balance increased from $5.72 to $8.96 million. The Debt Service
Fund had $4.68 million in revenues and $3.93 million in expenditures. The Debt Service Fund balance
increased from $3.53 to $4.28 million.



Using this Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR)

This annual report consists of a series of financial statements and notes to those statements. These
statements are organized so the reader can understand the District as a financial whole, an entire
operating entity. The statements then proceed to provide an increasingly detailed look at specific
financial activities.

The Statement of Net Assets and Statements of Activities provide information about the activities of the
whole District, presenting both an aggregate view of the District’s finances and a longer-term view of
those finances. Fund financial statements provide the next level of detail. For governmental funds, these
statements tell how services were financed in the short-term as well as what remains for future spending.
The fund financial statements also look at the District’s most significant funds with all other nonmajor
funds presented in total in one column. The General and Debt Service Funds are the major funds of the
District.

Reporting the School District as a Whole
Statement of Net Assets and the Statement of Activities

While this document contains the large number of funds used by the District to provide programs and
activities, the view of the District as a whole looks at all financial transactions and asks the questions,
“How did we do financially during 20037” The Statement of Net Assets and the Statement of Activities
answers this question. These statements include all assets and liabilities using the accrual basis of
accounting similar to the accounting used by most private-sector companies. This basis of accounting
takes into account all of the current year’s revenues and expenses regardless of when cash is received or
paid.

These two statements report the District’s net assefs and changes in those assets. This change in net
assets is important because it tells the reader that, for the District as a whole, the financial position has
improved or diminished. The causes of this change may be the result of many facters, both financial and
non-financial. Non-financial factors include the District’s property tax base, current property tax laws in
Ohio restricting revenue growth, facility conditions, required educational programs and other factors.

In the Statement of Net Assets and the Statement of Activities, the District is divided into two distinct
kinds of activities:

* Governmental Activities — Most of the District’s programs and services are reported here including
instruction, support services, operation and maintenance of plant, pupil transportation and
extracurricular activities.

* Business-Type Activities — These services are provided on a charge for goods or services basis to
recover all of the expenses of the goods or services provided. The District’s food service is reported
as business activities.



Reporting the District’s Most Significant Funds
Fund Financial Statements

The analysis of the District’s major fund is presented in the Fund Financial Statements (see Table of
Contents). Fund financial reports provide detailed information about the District’s major fund. The
District uses many funds to account for a multitude of financial transactions. However, these fund
financial statements focus on the District’s most significant funds.

Governmental Funds Most of the District’s activities are reported in governmental funds, which focus
on how money flows into and out of those funds and the balances left at year-end available for spending
in future periods. These funds are reported using an accounting method called modified accrual
accounting, which measures cash and all other financial assets that can readily be converted to cash. The
governmental fund statements provide a detailed skort-term view of the District’s general government
operations and the basic services it provides. Governmental fund information helps you determine
whether there are more or fewer financial resources that can be spent in the near future to finance
educational programs. The relationship (or differences) between governmental activities (reported in the
Statement of Net Assets and the Statement of Activities) and governmental funds is reconciled in the
financial statements.

Proprietary Funds Proprictary funds use the same basis of accounting as business-type activities;
therefore, these statements will essentially match.

The District as a Whole
Recal] that the Statement of Net Assets provides the perspective of the District as a whole.

Table 1 provides a summary of the District’s net assets for 2002 compared to 2003:

Table 1
Net Assets
Governmental Activities Business-Type Activities Total
2002 2003 2002 2003 2002 2003

Assels
Current and Other Assets $30,296,223 $33,410,950 $264,274 $286,788  $30,560,497  $33,697,738
Capilal Assels 51812668 _351.360.670 246,672 230,012 52,059,340 51,590,682
Total Assels 82.108.891 _84.771.620 510,946 516,800 82619.8317 85,288 420
Liabilities
Long-Term Liabilities 42,921,308 43,319,090 0 3,511 42,921,308 43,322,601
Other Liabilities 23,109,027 _19.802 486 68,065 63,190 _23.177.092 19,865,676
Total Liabilities 66,030,335 63,121,576 68.065 66,701 66,098,400 63,188,277
Net Assets
Invested in Capital

Assets Net of Debt 7,875,666 10,604,713 246,672 230,012 8,122,338 10,834,725
Restricted 3,537,316 4,763,056 0 0 3,537,316 4,763,056
Unrestricted 4,665,574 6.282 275 196,209 220,087 4,861,783 6,502,362
Total Net Assels SI6078,556 $21650,046, $442881 5450099 816,521,437 $22,100.143



Total assets increased $2.67 million. Equity in pooled cash and cash equivalents increased $1.62 million.
Taxes receivable increased $0.87 million. Tolal liabilities decreased $2.91 million, resulting in a net asset
increase of $5.58 million.

The net assets of the District business-type activities increased by $0.007 million. Since the increase was
slight, management has reviewed and, where and when feasible, increased fees. This action should
ensure that business-type activities remain self-supporting.

Table 2 shows the change in net assets for fiscal year 2003. Since this is the first year the District has
prepared financial statements following GASB Statement 34, revenue and expense comparisons to fiscal
year 2002 are not available.

Table 2
Changes in Net Assets
Governmental Business-Type
Activities Activities Total
2003 2003 2003

Revenues
Program Revenues:

Charges for Services £853,085 $739.860 $1,592,945

Operating Grants 1,708,381 152,972 1,861,353

Capital Grants 121,422 0 121,422
General Revenue:

Property Taxes 23,662,406 ¢ 23,662,406

Grants and Entitlements 12,717,708 0 12,717,708

Other 601,184 1,686 602,870
Total Revenues 39.664,186 894518 40,558,704
Program Expenses:
Instruction 18,645,800 0 18,645,800
Support Services:

Pupil and Instructional Staff 2,571,753 0 2,577,753

General Administration, School

Administration, Fiscal and Business 3,055,402 0 3,055,402

Operations and Maintenance 3,187,598 0 3,187,598

Pupil Transportation 2,396,177 0 2,396,177

Central 755,115 0 755,115
Community Services 617,664 0 617,664
Extracurricular Activities 963,397 0 963,397
Interest and Fiscal Charges 1,893,792 0 1,893,792
Food Service 0 887,300 887,300
Total Expenses 34,092,698 887.300 34,975,998
Increase in Net Assets 85,571,488 7218 $5,578,706



Governmental Activities

The District revenues are mainly from two sources. Property taxes levied for general purposes and grants
and entitlements comprised 92% of the District’s revenues for governmental activities.

The District depends greatly on property taxes as a revenue source. The unique nature of property taxes
in Ohio creates the need to routinely seek voter approval for operating funds. The overall revenues
generated by a levy will not increase solely as a result of inflation. As an example, a homeowner with a
home valued at $100,000 and taxed at 1.0 mill would pay $35.00 annually in taxes. If three years later
the home were reappraised and increased to $200,000 (and this inflationary increase in value is
comparable to other property owners) the effective tax rate would become .5 mills and the owner would
still pay $35.00.

Thus Ohio districts dependent upon property taxes are hampered by a lack of revenue growth and must
regularly return to the voters to maintain a constant level of service. Property taxes made up 59.7% of
revenue for governmental activities for the District in fiscal year 2003.

Instruction comprises 55% of governmental program expenses. Support services expenses were 35% of
governmental program expenses. All other expenses including interest expense were 10%. Interest
expense was attributable to the outstanding bond and borrowing for capital projects.

The Statement of Activities shows the cost of program services and the charges for services and grants
offsetting those services. Table 3 shows, for government activities, the total cost of services and the net
cost of services. That is, it identifies the cost of these services supported by tax revenite and unrestricted
State entitlements. Comparisons to 2002 have not been made since they are not available.

Table 3
Governmental Activities
Total Cost of Net Cost of
Services Services
2003 2003
Instruction $18,645,800 $17,415,616
Support Services:

Pupil and Instructional Staff 2,577,753 2,109,112

General Administration, School
Administration, Fiscal and Business 3,055,402 3,055,352
Operations and Maintenance 3,187,598 3,187,598
Pupil Transportation 2,396,177 2,331,331
Central 755,115 711,988
Community Services 617,664 115,745
Extracurricular Activities 963,397 589,276
Interest and Fiscal Charges 1,893,792 1,893,792
Total Expenses $34002698  $31,409.810



Business-Type Activities

Business-type activities include the food service operation. This program had revenues of $0.8% million
and expenses of $0.89 million for fiscal year 2003. As discussed earlier, management has reviewed these
programs and food service fees were increased. Business activities receive no support from tax revenues.

The District’s Funds

Information about the District’s major funds is presented in the Fund Financial Statements (see Table of
Contents). These funds are accounted for using the modified accrual basis of accounting. All
governmental funds had total revenues and other financing sources of $39,370,347 and expenditures and
other financing vses of $35,797,471. The net change in fund balance for the year was $3,572,067.

General Fund Budgeting Highliphts

The District’s budget is prepared according to Ohio law and is based on accounting for certain
transactions on a basis of cash receipts, disbursements and encumbrances. The most significant budgeted
fund is the General Fund,

During the course of fiscal 2003, the District amended its general fund budget numerous times, however
none were significant. The District uses site-based budgeting and the budgeting systems are designed to
tightly control total site budgets but provide flexibility for site management. During the course of the
year, the District revised the Budget in an attempt to deal with unexpected changes in revenues and
expenditures.

For the General Fund, budget basis revenue was $30.00 million, above original budget estimates of
$2%.16 million. Of this $0.84 million difference, most was due to estimates for taxes and
intergovernmental revenue.

The District’s ending unobligated cash balance for the general fund was $1.21 million above the final
budgeted amount.

Capital Assets and Debt Aministration
Capital Assels

At the end of fiscal 2003, the District had $51.6 million invested in land, buildings and equipment. Table
4 shows fiscal 2003 balances compared to fiscal 2002:

Table 4
Capital Assets at June 30
(Net of Depreciation)
Governmental Aclivities  Business-Type Activilies Total
2002 2003 2002 2003 2002 2003
Land $1,436,356 $1.436,356 $0 50 51,436,356 51,436,356
Buildings and Improvements 49,308,128 48,374,177 1] 0 49,308,128 48,374,177
Equipment 1.068.184 1.550.137 246,672 230.012 1,314,856 1.780,149
Total Net Assets 851,812,668 §51360,670 $246,672 $230,012 $52,059,340 §51,590,682



The decrease in capital assets is due to deletions in the capital assets account. The District continues its
ongoing commitment to maintaining and improving its capital assets.

Debt

At June 30, 2003, the District had $39,608,734 in bonds and notes payable outstanding, $3,435,000 due
within one year. Table 5 summarizes bonds and notes payable outstanding.

Table 5
Qutstanding Debt, at Year End
Governmenial Govemmental
Activities Activities
2002 2003

Total:
General Obligation Bonds Payable:

15999 Bond Issue £1,800,000 $1,700,000

1999 Bond Issue 38,390,734 36.470.734

Subtotal General Obligation Bonds Payable: 40,190,734 38,170,734
Notes Payable:

2001 Note Issue 1,057,000 1,057,000

2002 Note Issue 304,000 291,000

2002 Note Issue 90,000 90,000

Subtctal Notes Payable 1,451,000 1,438,000
Total Quistanding Debt at Year End 341,641,734 $39,608,734

At June 30, 2003, the District’s overall legal debt margin was $110,844,089 with an unvoted debt margin
of $1,626,379.

For the Future

Externally, the Ohio Supreme Court found the State of Ohio in March 1997, to be operating an
unconstitutional educational system, one that was neither “adequate™ nor “equitable.” Since 1997, the
State has directed its tax revenue growth toward school districts with little property tax wealth. In May
of 2000, the Ohio Supreme Court again ruled that, while the State had made some progress, the current
funding system for schools is far too dependent on property taxes which are inherently not “equitable”
nor “adequate”. The Court directed the Governor and the legislature to address the fundamental issues
creating the inequities. In 2001, the Ohio legislature crafted a school-funding program to address the
Court’s concems.

This scenario requires management to plan carefully and prudently to provide the resources to meet
student needs over the next several years,

With no increase in state funding projected, the District must increase revenues by submitting an
operating levy to the community in the near future. At this time, the Board has not set the date and
amount for the levy. Even though the District is projecting a slight decrease in enrollment, the need for
increased revenues is projected for fiscal year 2004. This increased funding will be needed to provide all
students a quality education. Financially, the future of the District is not without challenges.
Management must diligently plan future expenditures.



In addition, the District’s system of budgeting and internal controls is well regarded. All of the District’s
financial abilities will be needed to meet the challenges of the future. With careful planning and
monitoring of the District’s finances, the District’s management is confident that the District can continue
to provide a quality education for our students and provide a secure financial future.

Contacting the District’s Financial Management
This financial report is designed to provide our citizens, taxpayers, and investors and creditors with a
general overview of the District’s finances and to show the District’s accountability for the money it

receives. If you have questions about this report or need additional financial information, contact Jill
Manville at Loveland City School District, 757 South Lebanon Road, Loveland, Ohio 45140.
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Loveland City School District

Statemnent of Net Assets
June 30, 2003
Governmental Business-Type
Activities Activilics Total

Assets:
Equity in Pooled Cash and Investments 510,468,950 $247,846 $10,716,796
Restricied Cash and Investments 336,785 0 335,785
Reccivables: : .

Taxes 21,875,789 0 21,875,789

Accounts 147,842 0 147,842

Interest 10,429 5 10,434

Intergovernmental 558,966 14,976 573,942
Internal Balances 12,189 (12,189) o
Inveniory 0 36,150 36,150
Nondepreciable Capital Assers 1,436,356 0 1,436,356
Depreciable Capital Assets, Net 49,924,314 230,012 50,154,326
Total Assets 84,771,620 516,800 85,288,420
Linbilites:
Accounts Payable 15,392 ] 15,392
Accrued Wages and Benefits 3,730,546 57,952 3,788,498
Accrued Interest Payable 156,530 0 156,530
Deferred Revenue 15,900,018 5,238 15,905,256
Long-Term Liabilities:

Duc Within Qne Year 3,629,439 0 3,629.439

Due In More Than One Year 39,689,651 3,511 39,693,162
Total Liabilities 63,121,576 66,701 63,188.277
Net Assels:
Invested in Capital Asscls, Net of Related Deb 10,604,713 230,012 10,834,725
Restricted for:

Debi Service 4,126,210 ¢ 4,126,210

Capital Projects 1,810 0 1,810

Special Revenue 635,036 a0 635,036
Unrestricted 6,282,275 220,087 6,502,362
Total Net Asscts $21,650,044 $450,099 £22,100,143

See accompanying noles.
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Loveland Ciry School Disrict
Statement of Activities

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2003

Governmental Activities:
Instructon:

Regular

Special

Vocational

Other

Support Services:

Pupil

Instructional Staff

(General Administration
School Administration
Fiscal

Business

COperations and Maintenance
Pupil Transportation
Central

Community Services
Extrecurricular Activities
Interest and Fiscal Charges

Total Governmental Activitics

Business-Type Activities:
Food Service

Total Business-Type Activilies

Totals

See accompanying notes.

Program Revenues
Charges for Operating Grants Capital Grants
Expenses Services and Sales  and Contributions  and Contributions
$15,058,409 $464,742 $259,249 556,576
3.212,742 D 400,774 o
229,828 0 0 1]
144,321 14,222 34,621 1]
1,502,941 0 256,873 0
1,074,812 0 211,768 [H
167,305 0 0 v
1,920,831 1] 50 0
807,397 0 1] 0
159,869 .0 0 0
3,187,598 0 0 ¢
2,396,177 [H 0 64,846
755,115 0 43,127 o
617,664 0 501,919 1]
963,397 374,121 0 1]
1,893,792 0 0 0
34,092,698 853,085 1,708,381 121,422
887,300 739,860 152,972 0
887,300 739,860 152,972 0
$34,979,998 $1,592,945 $1,861,353 $121,422
General Revenues:
Property Taxes Levied for:
General Purposes
Debt Service
Grants and Entitlements not Restricted 10 Specific Programs
Unrestricted Contributions
Investment Eamnings
Other Revenues
Total General Revenues & Transfers
Change in Net Asscis
Net Assats Beginning ol Year
Net Assets End of Year
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Net (Expense) Revenue

and Changes in Net Assels
Govenmental ~ Business-Type
Activities Activities Total
($14,277,842) &0 (514,277 ,842)
(2,811,968) D (2,811,968)
(229,828} 0 (229,828}
(95,978) 0 {95,978)
(1,246,068) 0 {1,246,068)
(863,044) ¢ (363,044)
{167,305) 0 (167,305)
(1,920,781) 0 (1,920,781)
{807,397) H {807,397)
(159,869) 0 {159,869}
(3,187,598) 0 {3,187,598)
(2,331,331} 0 (2,331,33])
{711,988) 0 (711,988)
{115,745) 0 (115,745)
(589,276) 0 {589,276)
{1,893,792) ] (1,893,792)
{31,409,810) 0 {31,409,810)
0 5,532 5,532
0 5,532 5,532
{331,409,810) $5,532 (531,404,278}
19,474,618 0 19,474,618
4,187,788 ] 4,187,788
12,717,708 D 12,717,708
250 0 250
380,512 1,686 3z2,198
220,422 0 220,422
36,981,298 1,686 36,982,984
5,571,488 7.218 5,578,706
16,078 556 442 881 16,521,437
$21,650,044 §450,059 $22,100,143




Loveland City School District
Balance Sheet

Governmental Funds
June 30, 2043
Qther Total
Del Governmental CGovernmental
General Service Funds Funds
Assets:
Equily in Povled Cash and Investments $6,853,613 $3,166 400 $427,049 $10,447,062
Restricted Cash and Investments 336,785 0 0 336,785
Receivables:
Taxes 18,016,172 3,859,617 0 21,875,789
Accounts 118,125 0 29717 147 842
Interest 10,429 0 0 10,429
Intergavernmental - 0 1] 558,966 558,966
Interfund 214,667 .0 1 214,667
Total Assets 215549791 7,026,017 1,015.732 33,591,540
Lisbilitics and Fund Balances:
Liabilities:
Accounts Payable 805 0 14,587 15,392
Accrued Wages and Benefits 3,421,442 0 120,552 3,541,994
Compensated Absences 10,074 0 0 10,074
Interfund Payeble 0 0 202,478 202478
Deferred Revenue 13,156,740 2,743 271 371,864 16,271,881
Total Lishilides 16,589,061 2,743,277 709,481 20,041,819
Fund Balances:
Reserved for Encumbrances 24,305 0 155,730 180,035
Reserved for Property Tax Advances 4,859,432 1,116,340 0 5,975,772
Reserved for Set-Aside 336,785 0 0 336,785
Unreserved, Undesignated, Reported in:
General Fund 3,740,208 0 0 3,740,208
Special Revenue Funds 0 (] 148,711 148,711
Debt Service Funds 0 3,166,400 0 3,166,400
Capilal Projects Funds 0 0 1,810 1,810
Total Fund Balances 8,960,730 4,282 140 306,251 13,549,721
Total Liabilities and Fund Balances §25549,791 $7.026,017 £1,015,732 $33,591,540

Sec atcompanying noles.
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Loveland City School District

Reconciliation of Total Governmental Fumd Balance to
Net Assets of Governmental Activities

June 30, 2003

Total Governrnental Fund Balance £13,549,721

Amounts reported for governmental sctivities in the
statement of net assets are different because:

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial
resourees and therefore are not reported in the funds. 51,360,670

Other long-lerm asscts are not avatlable o pay for cumrent-
period expenditures and therefore are deferred in the funds. 371,863

An intemnal service fund is used by management to charge the
costs of insurance to indjvidual funds. The assets and
Jiabilities of the internat service fund are included in
governmental activities in the statement of net assets. 21,888

Tn the stalement of nct asscts, interest is accrued, whereas
in the governmental funds inlerest is reporied 2s a
liability only when it will require the use of current
financial resources, {156,530}

Some liabilities, such as compensaled absences and acerued benefits,
do not require the use of current financial resources and therefore

are not reporied as labilities in govermmental funds. (2,741,611}
Long-term linbilities, are not due and payable in the current

period and therefore are not reported in the funds. (40,755,957)
Net Assets of Governmental Activities $21,650,044

See accompanying notes.

15



Loveland City School District

Statement of Revenucs, Expendineres and Changes in Fund Balange

Governmental Funds
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2003

Revenues:

Taxes

Tuition and Fees
Investment Eamings
Intergovernmental
Extracurricular Activilies
Other Revenucs

Tolal Revenucs

Expenditures:
Current:
Instruction:
Regular
Special
Voeational
Other
Support Services:
Pupil
Instructional Staft
General Administration
School Adminisiratico
Fiscal
Busmess
Operations and Maintenance
Pupil Transpertation
Central
Community Services
Extracurmiculer Activitics
Debt Service:
Principal Retirement
Interest and Fiscal Charges

Total Expenditures
Excess of Reveoues Over (Under) Expenditures
Other Financing Sources (Uses):
Transfers In
Transfers {Out)
Total Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Net Change in Fund Balance
Fund Balance Beginning of Year

Fund Balance End of Year

See accompanying nolcs.

Other Total
Debt Governmental Governmental

General Scrvice Funds Funds
519474615 $4,187,788 50 £23,662,407
461,584 0 [H 461,584
379,650 0 861 380,511
12,328,143 49],023 1,372,103 14,191,269
o 0 374,121 374,421
218,073 0 19,578 218,051
32,862,069 4,678.811 1,767,063 39.307,943
13,503,469 0 283,706 13,787,175
2,857,529 0 306,654 3,164,183
228,110 0 0 228,110
140,821 0 4,000 144,821
1,315,823 1] 178,588 1494411
531,107 0 156,642 1,087,749
162,305 0 0 167,305
2019716 5,113 32 2,024,861
754 696 48,150 0 B0Z,846
168,539 1] 29,729 198,268
1,126,398 ] 0 3,126,398
2,523.219 1] 395,322 2922 541
833,589 {] 76,736 910,325
183,734 1] 434213 617,947
602,915 0 361,420 964,335
147325 2,033,000 4] 2,180,325
71,113 1,843,143 0 1,914,276
29,575,428 3929406 2231 042 35,735,876
3286641 749,405 {463,979) 3,572,067
] a 62,404 62,404
{48.438) (] {13,966} (62,404)
{48,438) 0 48,438 0
3,238,203 749,405 (415,541) 1,572,067
5,722 527 3,533.335 721,792 9,977,654
$8,960,730 $4 282 740 $306,251 $13,549,721
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Loveland City School District

Reconciliation of the Staternent of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes

in Fund Balance of Governmental Funds to the Statement of Acuvities

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2003

Net Change in Fund Balance - Totel Governmental Funds

Amounts reported for governmental aclivitizs in the
statement of activities are different becausc:

Governmental funds report capital oullays s expenditures.
However, in the statement of activities, the cost of those
assels is allocated over their estimated useful lives as
depreciation expense. This is the amount by which capital
outlays excreded depreciation in the current period.

Revenues in the statement of activities that do not provide
current financial resources are not reporied as revenues in
the finds.

Repayment of bond principal is an expenditure in the
governmental funds, but the repeyment reduces long-term
liabilities in the staternent of net assets.

In the stalement of activitics, interest is accrued, whereas in
governmenial funds, an interest expenditure is reported when due.

Some expenses reparted in the statement of activities,
such as compensated absences and accrued beneiits,
do not require the use of current financial
resources and therefore are not reported as expenditures
in governmental funds

The internal service fund used by management 1o charge
the costs of insurance to individual funds is not reported in
the district-wide statement of activities. Governmental fund
expenditures and the related internal service fund revenues
are eliminated. The net revenue (expense) of the internal
service fund is allocated among the governmental activities.

Change in Net Assets of Governmental Activities

Sec accompanying noles.
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£3,572,067

(451,998)

356,243

2,180,325

20,484

(112,547)

6,914

$5,571,488




Loveland City School District

Statement of Net Assets
Proprictary Funds
June 30, 203
Business-Type Governmental
Activities - Activities-
Food Internal Service
Service Fund

Assets:
Equity in Pooled Cash and Investments 5247 346 $21.888
Receivables:

Interest 5 0

Intergovernmental 14,976 0
Inventory 36,150 0
Tolal Current Assets 298,977 21.888
Depreciable Capital Assets, Net 230012 1]
Total Asscts 528,989 21,888
Liabilities:
Current Liabilities:
Accrued Wages and Benelits 517,952 0
Interfund Payeble 12,139 0
Defemed Revenuoe 5,218 0
Total Current Liabilities 75379 0
Long-Term Liabjlities:
Compensated Absences 3,511 0
Total Liabilites 78,890 0
Net Assets:
Invested in Capital Assets, Net of Related Debt 230,012 Q
Restricted for:
Unrestricted 220,087 21,888
Total Net Assels $450.099 §21.888

Sec accompanying noles.
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Loveland City School Diistrict

Statemenl of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Fund Net Assets

Proprictary Funds
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2003

Operating Revenues:
Charges for Services
Ciher Revenues

Total Operating, Revenues

Opersting Expenscs:
Personal Services
Cantactual Services
Materials 2nd Supplies

Depreciation

Total Operating Expenscs

Operating Income {Loss)

Non-Operating Revenues (Expenses):
Tovestment Eamings

Ponated Comeditics

Operating Grants

Tatal Non-Operating Revenues {(Expenses)
Change in Net Assels

Met Assets Beginning of Year

Net Assets End ol Year

See accompanying notes,

Business-Type Governmental
Activities - Activities-
Food Internal Service
Service Fund
§739.860 $0
0 41214
739,860 41,214
424,152 0
22,870 34300
388,568 1]
51,710 0
887,300 34300
(147,440) 6,914
1,686 0
44205 0
108,767 1]
154,658 1]
7,218 6,914
442,881 14,974
$450,099 520,888
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Loveland City School District
Statement of Cash Flows

Proprietary Funds

Far the Fiscal Year Ended Junc 30, 2003

Cash Flows from Operating Activities:
Cash Received from Cusiomers

Cash Payments to Employces

Cagh Payments o Suppliers

Nel Cash Provided {Uscd) by Operating Activites

Cash Flows from Noncapital Financing Activities:
Opecrating Graots Received

Net Cash Provided (Used) by Noneapital Financing Activities

Cash Flows from Capital and Related Financing Activities:
Payments for Capital Acquisitions

Net Cash Provided (Used) by Capital and
Related Finanging Activities

Cash Flows from Investing Activities:
Eamings on Investments

MNet Cash Provided (Used} by Cash Flows from Investing Activaties
Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and Cash Equivalents Beginning of Year

Cash ond Cash Equivalents End of Year

Reconciliation of Operating Income (Loss) to
Net Cash Provided (Used) by Operating Activilies
Operating Income (Loss)
Adjustments:
Depreciation
Donsted Comaodities
Changes in Assets & Liabilities:
{Increase) Decrease in Inventory
Increase (Decrease) in Payables
Increase {Decrease) in Acerued Liabilities
Increase (Decease) in Deferred Revenue

Net Cash Provided (Used) by Operating Activitics
Schedule of Noneash Capital Activities:

During the Ascal year, the Food Service Fumd
received contributed food commodities valued at

Sec accompanying notes.

Business-Type Governmental
Activities - Aclivitics-
Food loternal Service
Service Fund

§739,860 541214
{409,341) o0
{391,517) (34,300)
(61,498) 6,914
108252 0
108,252 0
{33,050) 0
{35,050) 1
1,851 0

1,851 0
13,555 5,914
234,291 14,974
247,846 21,888
(147,440) 6,914
51,710 0
44,205 0
(20,798). 0
27) 0

14311 0
(3,459) 0
(561,498) 56,914

$44,205
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Loveland City School Distriet
Statement of Fiduciary Net Assets

Fiduciary Funds
June M), 2003

Apency
Assets;
Equity in Pooled Cash and Investments $86,953
Total Assets $86,933
Liabilities:
Accounls Payable 5275
Other Liabilities 86,678
Total Liabilities 536!953
Scc eccompanying noles.
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LOVELAND CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2003

1. DESCRIPTION OF THE DISTRICT

The Loveland City School District (the "District”) is a body politic and corporate established for the

purpose of exercising the rights and privileges conveyed to it by the constitution and laws of the
State of Ohio.

The Loveland City School District is a city school district as defined by Section 3311.02, Revised
Code. The District operates under an elected Board of Education (5 members) and is responsible
for the provision of public education to residents of the District.

Management believes the financial statements included in this report represent all of the funds of
the District for which the Board of Education has fiscal responsibility.

REPORTING ENTITY

In accordance with Governmental Accounting Standards Board [GASB] Statement 14, the
financial reporting entity consists of a primary government. The District is a primary
government because it is a special-purpose government that has a separately elected governing
body, is legally separate, and is fiscally independent of other state and local governments.

There are no component units combined with the District for financial statement presentation
purposes, and it is not included in any other governmental reporting entity. Consequently, the
District's financial statements include only the funds of those organizational entities for which its
elected governing body is financially accountable. The District's major operations include
education, pupil transportation, food service, and maintenance of District facilities.

PAROCHIAIL: SCHOOLS

Within the District boundaries, Holy Family School is operated through the Saint Columbia
Catholic Diocese. Current State legislation provides funding to this parochial school. These
monies are received and disbursed on behalf of the parochial school by the treasurer of the
District, as directed by the parochial school. The activity of these State monies by the District is
reflected in a special revenue fund for financial reporting purposes.

The District is associated with two jointly governed organizations and two public entity risk
pools. These organizations are:

Jointly Govemed Organizations:

Southwest Ohio Computer Association
Hamilton Clermont Cooperative Association / Unified Purchasing Association
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Public Entity Risk Pools:
Ohio School Boards Association Workers' Compensation Group Rating
Greater Cincinnati Insurance Consortium

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The financial staternents of the District have been prepared in conformity with generally accepted
accounting principles (GAAP) as applied to governmental units. The Governmental Accounting
Standards Board (GASB) is the accepted standard-setting body for establishing governmental
accounting and financial reporting principles. The District also applies Financial Accounting
Standards Board (FASB) statements and interpretations issued on or before November 30, 1989,
to its governmental and business-type activities and to its proprietary funds provided they do not
conflict with or contradict GASB pronouncements. For business-type activities and proprietary
funds, the District has elected not to follow subsequent private-sector guidance. The most
significant of the District’s accounting policies are described below.

MEASUREMENT FOCUS
Government-wide Financial Statements

The govermnment-wide statements are prepared using the economic resources measurement focus.
All assets and liabilities associated with the operation of the District are included on the
staternent of net assets. Fiduciary funds are not included in entity-wide statements.

The government-wide statement of activities presents a comparison between direct expenses and
program revenues for each segment of the business-type activities of the District and for each
function or program of the District’s governmental activities. Direct expenses are those that are
specifically associated with a service, program or department and therefore clearly identifiable to
a particular function. Program revenues include charges paid by the recipient of the goods or
services offered by the program and contributions that are restricted to meeting the operational or
capital requirements of a particular program. Revenues which are not classified as program
revenues are presented as general revenues of the District, with certain limited exceptions. The
comparison of direct expenses with program revenues identifies the extent to which each
business segment or governmental function is self-financing or draws from the general revenues
of the District.

Fund Financial Statements

All governmental funds are accounted for using a flow of current financial resources
measurement focus. With this measurement focus, only current assets and current liabilities
generally are included on the balance sheet. The statement of revenues, expenditures andchanges
in fund balances reports on the sources (i.e., revenues and other financing sources) and uses (i.e.,
expenditures and other financing uses) of current financial resources. This approach differs from
the manner in which the governmental activities of the government-wide financial statements are
prepared. Governmental fund financial statements therefore include reconciliation with brief
explanations to better identify the relationship between the government-wide statements and the
statements for governmental funds.

24



Like the government-wide statements, all proprietary fund types are accounted for on a flow of
economic resources measurement focus., All assets and all liabilities associated with the
operation of these funds are included on the statement of net assets. The statement of changes in
fund net assets presents increases (i.e., revenues) and decreases (i.e., expenses) in net total assets.
The statement of cash flows provides information about how the District finances and meets the
cash flow needs of its proprietary activities.

Fiduciary funds are reported using the economic resources measurement focus.

FUND ACCOUNTING

The District uses funds to maintain its financial records during the fiscal year. Fund accounting
is designed to demonstrate legal compliance and to aid management by segregating transactions
related to certain District functions or activities. A fund is defined as a fiscal and accounting
entity with a self-balancing set of accounts. The various funds of the District are grouped into
the categories governmental, proprietary and fiduciary.

Governmental Funds

Governmental funds focus on the sources, uses and balances of current financial
resources. Expendable assets are assigned to the various governmental funds according
to the purposes for which they may or must be used. Current liabilities are assigned to the
fund from which they will be paid. The difference between governmental fund assets and
liabilities is reported as fund balance. The following are the District’s major
governmental funds:

General Fund - The general fund is used to account for all financial resources except
those required to be accounted for in another fund. The general fund balance is
available for any purpose provided it is expended or transferred according to the
general laws of Ohio.

Debt Service Fund — The debt service fund is used to account for the accumulation
of resources for the payment of general obligation bond principal and interest and
certain other long-term obligations from governmental resources when the District
is obligated in some manner for the payment.

Proprietary Fund

Proprietary fund reporting focuses on the determination of operating income changes in
net assets, financial position and cash flows. Proprietary funds are classified as enterprise
or internal service; the District has one internal service fund.
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Enterprise Fund — The enterprise fund may be used to account for any activity for
which a fee is charged to external users for goods or services. The District’s only
enterprise fund is:

Food Service Fund — This fund accounts for the financial transactions
related to the food service operations of the District.

Internal Service Fund — This fund accounts for the financing of goods or services
provided by one department or agency to another department or agency of the
District on a cost reimbursement basis.

Fiduciary Funds

Fiduciary fund reporting focuses on net assets and changes in net assets. The fiduciary
fund category is split into four classifications: pension trust funds, investment trust
funds, private purpose trust funds and agency funds. Trust funds are used to account for
assets held by the District under a trust agreement for individuals, private organizations,
or other governments and are therefore not available to support the District’s own
programs. Agency funds are custodian in nature (assets equal liabilities) and do not
involve measurement of results of operations. The District’s only fiduciary fund is an
agency fund.

3. BASIS OF ACCOUNTING

Basis of accounting determines when transactions are recorded in the financial records and
reported on the financial statements. Government-wide financial statements are prepared using
the accrual basis of accounting. Governmental funds use the modified accrual basis of
accounting. Proprietary and fiduciary funds also use the accrual basis of accounting. Differences
in the actual and the modified accrual basis of accounting arise in the recognition of revenue, the
recording of deferred revenue, and in the presentation of expenses versus expenditures.

Revenues — Exchange and Non-exchange Transactions

Revenue resulting from exchange transactions, in which each party gives and receives
essentially equal value, is recorded on the accrual basis when the exchange takes place.
On a modified accrual basis, revenue is recorded in the fiscal year in which the resources
are measurable and become available. Available means that the resources will be
collected within the current fiscal year or are expected to be collected soon enough
thereafter to be used to pay liabilities of the current fiscal year. For the District, available
means expected to be received within sixty days of fiscal year end.
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Nonexchange transactions, in which the District receives value without directly giving
equal value in return, included property taxes, grants, entitlements and donations. On an
accrual basis, revenue from property taxes is recognized in the fiscal year for which the
taxes are levied. Revenue from grants, entitlements and donations is recognized in the
fiscal year in which all eligibility requirements have been satisfied. Eligibility
requirements include timing requirements, which specify the year when the resources are
required to be used or the year when use is first permitted, matching requirements, in
which the District must provide local resources to be used for a specified purpose, and
expenditure requirements, in which the resources are provided to the District on a
reimbursement basis. On a modified accrual basis, revenue from nonexchange
transactions must also be available before it can be recognized.

Under the modified accrual basis, the following revenue sources are considered to be both
measurable and available at year end: property taxes available for advance, grants and
interest.

Deferred Revenue

Deferred revenue arises when assets are recognized before revenue recognition criteria
have been satisfied.

Property taxes for which there is an enforceable legal claim as of June 30, 2003, but
which were levied to finance fiscal year 2004 operations, have been recorded as deferred
revenue. Grants and entitlements received before the eligibility requirements are met are
also recorded as deferred revenue.

On governmental fund financial statements, receivables that will not be collected within
the available period have also been reported as deferred revenue.

Expenses/Expenditures

On the accrual basis of accounting, expenses are recognized at the time they are incurred.
The fair value of donated commodities used during the year is reported in the operating
statement as an expense with a like amount reported as donated commodities revenue.
Unused donated commodities are reported as deferred revenue,

The measurement focus of governmental fund accounting is on decreases in net financial
resources (expenditures) rather than expenses. Expenditures are generally recognized in
the accounting period in which the related fund liability is incurred, if measurable.
Allocations of cost, such as depreciation and amortization, are not recognized in the
governmental funds.
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CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash received by the District is pooled for investment purposes. Interest in the pool is presented
as “equity in pooled cash and investments” on the financial statements. The District utilizes a
financial institution to service bonded debt as principal and interest payments come due. The
balance in this account is presented on the financial statements as “cash and cash equivalents
with fiscal agent”. The account on the combined balance sheet “Cash with fiscal and escrow
agents” represents deposits used to pay arbitrage liability.

Except for nonparticipating investment contracts, investments are reported at fair value which is
based on quoted market prices. Nonparticipating investment contracts such as nonnegotiable
certificates of deposits and repurchase agreements are reported at cost.

The District has invested funds in the State Treasury Asset Reserve of Ohio (STAR Ohio) during
fiscal year 2003. STAR Ohio is an investment pool managed by the State Treasurer’s Office,
which allows governments within the State to pool their funds for investment purposes. STAR
Ohio is not registered with the SEC as an investment company but does operate in a manner
consistent with Rule2A7 of the Investment Company Act of 1940. Investments in STAR Ohio
are valued at STAR Ohio’s share price, which is the price the investment could be sold for on
June 30, 2003.

Following Ohio statutes, the Board has, by resolution, specified the funds to receive an allocation
of interest earnings. Interest revenue (on governmental-wide statements) during fiscal year 2003
amounted to $382,198.

For purposes of the statement of cash flows, the Enterprise Funds® portion of pooled cash and
investments is considered a cash equivalent because the District is able to withdraw resources
from the enterprise funds without prior notice or penalty.

INVENTORY

On government-wide financial statements, inventories are presented at the lower of cost or
market on a first-in, first-out basis and are expensed when used.

On the fund financial statements inventories of enterprise funds consist of donated food,
purchased food, and school supplies held for resate and are expensed when used.

CAPITAI ASSETS

General capital assets are those assets not specifically related to activities reported in the
proprietary funds. These assets generally result from expenditures in the governmental funds.
These assets are reported in the governmental activities column of the government-wide
statement of net assets but are not reported in the fund financial statements. Capital assets
utilized by the proprietary funds are reported both in the business-type activities column of the
government-wide statement of net assets and in the respective funds.
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All capital assets are capitalized at cost (or estimated historical cost) and updated for additions
and retirements during the year. Donated fixed assets are recorded at their fair market values as
of the date received. The District maintains a capitalization threshold of five hundred dollars
($500). The District does not possess any infrastructure. Improvements are capitalized; the costs
of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the asset or materially extend
an asset’s life are not. Interest incurred during the construction of capital assets is also
capitalized.

All reported capital assets are depreciated, except land. Improvements are depreciated over the
remaining useful lives of the related capital assets. Depreciation is allocated using the straight-
line method over the following useful lives:

Govermmental Business-Type
Activities Activities
Description Estimated Lives Estimated Lives
Buildings and Improvements 20-40 years N/A
Equipment 3-15 years 3-15 years

COMPENSATED ABSENCES

The District reports compensated absences in accordance with the provisions of GASB Statement
No. 16, “Accounting for Compensated Absences.” Vacation benefits are accrued as a liability as
the benefits are earned if the employees® rights to receive compensation are attributable to
services already rendered and it is probable that the District will compensate the employees for
the benefits through paid time off or some other means. The District records a liability for
accumulated unused vacation time, when earned, for all employees with more than one year of
service.

Sick leave benefits are accrued as a liability using the vested payment method. An accrual for
eamed sick leave is made to the extent that it is probable that the benefits will result in
termination payments. The liability is based on the District’s past experience of making
termination payments.

The entire compensated absence lability is reported on the government-wide financial
statements.

For governmental fund financial statements, the expenditures for unpaid compensated absences
are recognized when due. These amounts are recorded in the account “compensated absences
payable” in the fund from which the employees who have accumulated unpaid leave are paid.
The entire amount of compensated absences is reported as a fund liability in Proprietary Funds.
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The District’s policies reparding compensated absences are determined by the state laws and/or
negotiated agreements. In summary, the policies are as follows:

Vacation Certifred Administrators Non-Certificated
How Earned Not Eligible 25-30 days per 10-25 days for each
year or 2.08-2.50 service year depending
per month on length of service
Maximtum
Accumulation Not Applicable 30 days Double the maximum
Payoffup to 10 accumulated
days/yr. unused
earned
Vested Not Applicable As Eamed As Earned
Termination
Entitlement Not Applicable Paid upon Paid upon
termination termination
Sick Leave
How Eamed 1 1/4 days per month 1 1/4 days per month 1 1/4 days per month
of employment (15 of employment (135 of employment {15
days per year) days per year) days per year)
Maximum
Accumulation 325 days 325 days 325 days
Vested As Earned As Eamed As Earned
Termination
Entitlement 1/3 paid upon 1/3 paid upon 1/3 paid upon
retirement retirement retirement
NET ASSETS

Net assets represent the difference between assets and liabilities. Net assets invested in capital
assets, net of related debt consists of capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation, reduced by
the outstanding balances of any borrowings used for the acquisition, construction or
improvement of those assets. Net assets are reported as restricted when there are limitations
imposed on their use either through the enabling legislation adopted by the District or through
external restrictions imposed by creditors, grantors or laws or regulations of other governments.
The District applies restricted resources when an expense is incurred for purposes for which both
restricted and unrestricted net assets are available.

OPERATING REVENUES AND EXPENSES

Operating revenues are those revenues that are generated directly from the primary activity of the
proprietary funds. For the District, these revenues are sales for food service, adult education and
community school. Operating expenses are necessary costs incurred to provide the good or
service that is the primary activity of the fund.
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CONTRIBUTIONS OF CAPITAL

Contributions of capital in proprietary fund financial statements arise from outside contributions
of fixed assets, or from grants or outside contributions of resources restricted to capital
acquisition and construction.

INTERFUND ACTIVITY

Transfers between governmental and business-type activities on the government-wide statements
are reported in the same manner as general revenues.

Exchange transactions between funds are reported as revenues in the seller funds and as
expenditures/expenses in the purchaser funds. Flows of cash or goods from one fund to another
without a requirement for repayment are reported as interfund transfers. Interfund transfers are
reported as other financing sources/uses in governmental funds and after nonoperating
revenues/expenses in proprietary funds, Repayments from funds responsible for particular
expenditures/expenses to the funds that initially paid for them are not presented on the financial
statements.

BUDGETARY PROCESS

The budgetary process is prescribed by provisions of the Ohio Revised Code and entails the
preparation of budgetary documents within an established timetable. The major documents
prepared are the tax budget, the certificate of estimated resources and the appropriation
resolution, all of which are prepared on the budgetary basis of accounting. The certificate of
estimated resources and the appropriations resolution are subject to amendment throughout the
year with the legal restriction that appropriations cannot exceed estimated resources, as certified.
All funds, other than agency funds, are legally required to be budgeted and appropriated. The
primary level of budgetary control is at the fund level. Any budgetary modifications at this level
may only be made by resolution of the Board of Education.

Tax Budget

Prior to January 15, the Superintendent and Treasurer submit to the Board of Education a
proposed operating budget for the fiscal year commencing the following July 1. The
budget includes proposed expenditures and the means of financing for all funds. Public
hearings are publicized and conducted to obtain taxpayers’ comments. The express
purpose of this budget document is to reflect the need for existing (or increased) tax rates.
By no later than January 20, the Board-adopted budget is filed with the County Budget
Commission for rate determination.
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Estimated Resources

Prior to April 1, the Board accepts, by formal resolution, the tax rates as determined by
the County Budget Commission and receives the Commission’s certificate of estimated
resources which states the projected revenue of each fund. Prior to June 30, the District
must revise its budget so that total contemplated expenditures from any fund during the
ensuing year will not exceed the amount stated in the certificate of estimated resources.
The revised budget then serves as the basis for the appropriation measure. On or about
July 1, the certificate is amended to include any unencumbered cash balances from the
preceding year. The certificate may be further amended during the year if projected
increases or decreases in revenue are identified by the District Treasurer. The amounts
reported as the original budgeted amounts in the budgetary statements reflect the amounts
in the amended certificate when the original appropriations were adopted. The amounts
reported as the final budgeted amounts in the budgetary statements reflect the amounts in
the final amended certificate issued during fiscal year 2003.

Appropriations

Upon receipt from the County Auditor of an amended certificate of estimated resources
based on final assessed values and tax rates or a certificate sayir.g no new certificate is
necessary, the annual appropriation resolution must be legally enacted by the Board of
Education at the fund level, which are the legal levels of budgetary control. Prior to the
passage of the annual appropriation measure, the Board may pass a temporary appropriation
measure to meet the ordinary expenses of the District. The appropriation resolution, by
fund, must be within the estimated resources as certified by the County Budget Commission
and the total of expenditures and encumbrances may not exceed the appropriation totals at
any level of control.

Any revisions that alter the total of any fund appropriation or alter total function
appropriations within a fund, must be approved by the Board of Education. The Board may
pass supplemental fund appropriations so long as the total appropriations by fund does not
exceed the amounts set forth in the most recent Certificate of Estimated Resources. During
the year, several supplemental appropriations were legally enacted. The budget figures,
which appear in the statements of budgetary comparisons, represent the final appropriation
amounts, including all supplemental appropriations. Formal budgetary integration is
employed as a management control device during the year for all funds, other than agency
funds, consistent with statutory provisions.
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Encumbrances

As part of formal budgetary control, purchase orders, contracts and other commitments
for the expenditure of monies are recorded as the equivalent of expenditures on the non-
GAAP budgetary basis in order to reserve that portion of the applicable appropriations
and to determine and maintain legal compliance. On the GAAP basis, encumbrances
outstanding at fiscal year end are reported as a reservation of fund balance for subsequent
year expenditures for governmental funds.

Lapsing of Appropriations

At the close of each year, the unencumbered balance of each appropriation reverts to the
respective fund from which it was appropriated and becomes subject to future
appropriation. Encumbered appropriations are carried forward to the succeeding fiscal
year and are not reappropriated.

FUND EQUITY

Reserved fund balances indicate a portion of fund equity which is not available for current
appropriation or is legally segregated for a specific use. Fund balances are reserved for
encumbrances, supplies inventory, prepayments, debt service, and property taxes. The reserve for
property taxes represents taxes recognized as revenue under generally accepted accounting
principles but not available for appropriations under State statute. The unreserved portion of
fund equity, reflected for the Governmental Funds, is available for use within the specific
purpose of those funds.

CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLES

For fiscal year 2003, the School District has implemented GASB Statement No. 34, “Basic
Financial Statements - and Management’s Discussion and Analysis - for State and Local
Governments”, GASB Statement No. 37, “Basic Financial Statements for State and Local
Governments: Omnibus®, GASB Statement No. 38, “Certain Financial Statement Note
Disclosures”, GASB Statement No. 41, “Budgetary Comparison Schedules - Perspective
Differences”, and GASB Interpretation No. 6 “Recognition and Measurement of Certain
Liabilities and Expenditures in Governmental Fund Financial Statements.”

GASB 34 creates new basic financial statements for reporting on the School District’s financial
activities. The financial statements now include government-wide financial statements prepared
on an accrual basis of accounting and fund financial statements which present information for

individual major funds rather than by fund type. Nonmajor funds are presented in total in one
column.

GASB Statement No. 41 allows the presentation of budgetary schedules as required supplementary
information based on the fund, organization or program structure that the government uses for its
legally adopted budget when significant budgetary perspective differences result in the school district
not being able to present budgetary comparisons for the general and each major special revenue fund.
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The government-wide financial statements split the District’s programs between business-type
and governmental activities. Except for the restatement explained below, the beginning net asset
amount for the business-type activities equals fund equity of the Enterprise Funds from last year.
The beginning net asset amount for governmental programs reflects the change in fund balance

for governmental funds at June 30, 2003.

RESTATEMENT OF FUND BALANCE

The implementation of these statements had the following effects on fund balance of the major
and non-major funds of the District as they were previously reported. The transition from
governmental fund balances to net assets of the governmental activities is also presented.

General Debt Service = Nonmajor
Fund Balances, June 30, 2002 $5,722,158 $3,533,335 $721,792
Fund Reclassification 369 0 0
Adjusted Fund Balances, June 30,2002  §$5,722,527 $3.533,335  $721.792

GASB 34 Adjustments:
Capital Assets
Accrued Interest Payable
Compensated Absences Payable
Deferred Revenue
Accrued Wages and Benefits
Long Term Liabilities

Prior Period Adjustment:
Note Payable

Governmental Activities Net Assets, June 30, 2002

Total

$9,977,285
369

§9.977.654

$51,812,668
(177,014) -
(2,453,126)
15,620
(175,938)
(42,846,282)

(75.026)
$16,078,556

At June 30, 2002, fixed assets were restated in the Enterprise Funds. This restatement had the
following effect on fund equity as it was previously reported: '

Fund Equity, June 30, 2002

Fixed Assets

Adjusted Net Assets,

June 30, 2002
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$491,628
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4. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

The District maintains a cash and investment pool used by all funds. Each fund type's portion of
this pool is displayed on the combined balance sheet as "Cash and cash equivalents."

State statute requires the classification of monies held by the District into three categories:

Active Monies - Those monies required to be kept in a "cash" or "near cash" status for
immediate use by the District. Such monies must by law be maintained either as cash in
the District treasury, in depository accounts payable or withdrawable on demand.

Inactive Monies — Those monies not required for use within the current two year period
of designated depositories. Ohio law permits inactive monies to be deposited or invested
as certificates of deposit maturing not later than the end of the current period of
designated depositories, or as savings or deposit accounts, including, but not limited to
passbook accounts.

Interitn Monies — Those monies which are not needed for immediate use but which will
be needed before the end of the current period of designation of depositories. Chio law
permits interim monies to be invested or deposited in the following securities:

(1) Bonds, notes, or other obligations of or guaranteed by the United States, or
those for which the faith of the United States is pledged for the payment
of principal and interest.

(2) Bonds, notes, debentures, or other obligations or securities issued by any
federal governmental agency.

3) Repurchase agreements in the securities enumerated above.

4) Interim deposits in the eligible institutions applying for interim monies to
be evidenced by time certificates of deposit maturing not more than one
year from date of deposit, or by savings or deposit accounts, including, but
limited to, passbook accounts.

5) Bonds, and other obligations of the State of Ohio.

) The Ohio State Treasurer's investment pool (STAR Ohio).

(7)  Commercial paper and banker’s acceptances which meet the requirements
established by Ohio Revised Code, Sec. 135.142.

© 35



Investments in stripped principal or interest obligations, reverse repurchase agreements
and derivatives are prohibited. The issuance of taxable notes for the purpose of arbitrage,
the use of leverage and short selling are also prohibited. An investrnent must mature
within five years from the date of purchase unless matched to a specific obligation or debt
of the District, and must be purchased with the expectation that it will be held to maturity.
Investments may only be made through specified dealers and institutions. Payment for
investments may be made only upon delivery of the securities representing the
investments to the treasurer or, if the securities are not represented by a certificate, upon
receipt of confirmation of transfer from the custodian.

Deposits ~ At the year end, the carrying amount of the District's deposits was
$4,101,548. The bank balance of deposits was $4,752,950 of which 3$100,000 was
covered by federal depository insurance. The remaining balance of $4,652,950 was
covered by 110% public depository pool, which was collateralized with securities held by
the pledging financial institution's trust department but not in the District's name.

Investments — The District's investments are categorized to give an indication of the level
of risk assumed by the entity at year end (GASB Statement 3):

Category 1 includes investments that are insured or registered or for which the
securities are held by the District or its agent in the District's name.

Category 2 includes uninsured and unregistered investments for which the
securities are held by the counterparty's trust department or agent in
the District's name.

Category3  includes uninsured and unregistered investments for which the
securities are held by the counterparty or by its department or
agent, but not in the District’s name.

Based on the above criteria, the District’s investments at year-end are classified as
follows:

Camrying

Amount/
Description Catepory 1 Category2 Category 3 Fair Value
Money Market Fund* $0 f0 $0 $19,970
Federal Agency Security 0 0 5972,458 5,972,458
State Treasury Pool* 0 0 0 1,046,558
Total Investments £0 $0 $5972,458 3$7,038.986

*The District’s investment in the Ohio State Treasury Pool and Money Market fund are not
categorized because they are not evidenced by securities that exist in physical or book entry
form. :
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Ohio Revised Code Chapter 135, Uniform Depository Act, authorizes pledging of pooled
securities in lieu of specific securities. Specifically, a designated public depository may pledge a
single pool of eligible securities to secure repayment of all public monies deposited in the
financial institution, provided that all times the total value of the securities so pledged is at least
equal to 110% of the total amount of all public deposits secured by the pool, including the
portion of such deposits covered by any federal deposit insurance.

. PROPERTY TAXES

Real property taxes collected in 2003 were levied in April on the assessed values as of January 1,
2002, the lien date. Assessed values are established by the County Auditor at 35 percent of
appraised market value. A re-evaluation of real property is required to be completed no less than
every six years, with a statistical update every third year.

Tangible personal property tax is assessed on equipment and inventory held by businesses.
Tangible property is assessed at 25 percent of true value (as defined). In 2003, each business was
eligible to receive a $10,000 exemption in assessed value which was reimbursed by the State.

Real property taxes are payable annually or semi-annually. In 2003, if paid annually, payment
was due by January 20th. If paid semi-annually, the first payment (at least 1/2 amount billed)
was due January 20th with the remainder due on June 20th.

The County Auditor remits portions of the taxes collected to all taxing districts with periodic
settlements of real and public utility property taxes in February and August and tangible personal
property taxes in June and October. The District records billed but uncollected property taxes as
receivables at their estimated net realizable value.

Accrued property taxes receivable represent delinquent taxes outstanding and real property,
personal property and public utility taxes which became measurable at June 30, 2003.
Delinquent property taxes collected within 60 days are included as a receivable and tax revenue
as of June 30, 2003. Although total property tax collections for the next fiscal year are
measurable, only the amount available as an advance at June 30 is available to finance current
year operations. The receivable is, therefore, offset by a credit to deferred revenue for that
portion not intended to finance current year operations. The amount available as an advance at
June 30, 2003, was $4,859432 for General Fund and $1,116,340 for Debt
Service, and is recognized as revenue, with a corresponding reserve to fund balance since the
Board did not appropriate these receivables for fiscal year 2003 operations. The amount
available for advance at June 30, 2002 was $3,263,620 for General Fund and $696,419 for Debt
Service, with a corresponding reserve to fund balance since the Board did not appropnate those
receivables for fiscal year 2002 operations.

On a full accrual basis, collectible delinquent property taxes have been recorded as a receivable
and revenue, while on a modified acerual basis the revenue has been deferred.
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The assessed values upon which the fiscal year 2003 taxes were collected are:

Amount
Agricultural/Residential
and Other Real Estate $572,677,040
Public Utility Personal 11,230,160
Tangible Personal Property 19,153.180
Total $603,060,380

6. RECEIVABLES

Receivables at June 30, 2003, consisted of taxes, accounts (rent and student fees),
intergovernmental grants and interest. All receivables are considered collectible in full due to the
ability to foreclose for the nonpayment of taxes, the stable condition of State programs, and the

current year guarantee of federal funds.

7. CAPITAL ASSETS

Capital asset activity for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2003, was as follows:

Government Activities

Land
Buildings and Improvements
Equipment

Totals at Historical Cost

Less Accumulated Depreciation:
Buildings and Improvements
Equipment

Total Accumulated Depreciation

Governmental Activities Capital
Assets, Net

Beginning
Balance

31,436,356
73,580,185
3.110.482

$78,127,023

$24,272,057
2,042,298

$26,314,355

$51,812,668

ER:]

Additions

%0
548,625
790,965

$1,339,590

51,482,576
3090612

$1,791,538

($451,998)

Deductions

457,652

Ending
Balance

$1,436,356
74,128,810
3.443.795

$79,008,961

$25,754,633
1,893,658

$27,648,291

$51,360,670



Business-Type Activities

Egquipment $610,720
Total at Historical Cost £610.720
Less Accumulated Depreciation:
Equipment 364,048
Total Accumulated Depreciation $364,048
Business-Type Activities

Capital Assets, Net $246,672

*Depreciation expense was charged to governmental functions as follows:

Instruction:
Regular
Special
Support Services:
Pupil
Instructional Staff
School Administration
Fiscal
Business
Operations and Maintenance
Pupil Transportation
Central
Total Depreciation Expense

8. LONG-TERM LIABILITIES

Beginning
Maturity Principal
Dales Outstanding

Governmental Activities:
General Obligation Bonds and Notes Payable:
Bond Issue
1999 4.84% 12/01/19 $1,800,000
Bond Issue
1999 5.00% 12/01724 38,390,734
Note Issue
2001 4.40% 05/01/04 1,057,000
Note Issue
2002 4.80% 12/01/17 304,000
Note Issue
2002 3.53% 05/01/04 90,000
Tolal General Obligation
Bonds and Noles Payable 41,641,734
Compensaled Absences 2,453,126
Capital Leases 1,294,548
Total Governmental Activities }
Long-Term Liabilities $45,389 408

39

35.050 4000
$35.050 $4.000
$51.710 4,000
$51,710 $4,000
(516,660} 20

$1,321,676

44,477

640

17,165

89,525

1,465

407

59,623

16,111

237.499

31,791,588
Ending
Principal

Additions Deductions  Quistanding

by 0 £ 100,000 $1,700,000
0 1,920,000 36,470,734
0 0 1,057,000
0 13,000 291,000
0 0 50,000
0 2,033,000 39,608,734
110,007 0 2,563,133
] 147,325 1,147,223
3110,007 £2,180,325  $43,319,090

$641,770
$641.770

$411,758
$411.758

$230,012

Due In
One Year

$100,000
2,175,000
1,057,000

13,000

90,000

3,435,000
38,782
155,657

$3,629,439



Business-Type Aclivilics
Compensated Absences $0 $3,511 30 $3.a11 10
General obligation bonds will be paid from the debt service fund. Compensated absences will be

paid from the fund from which the person is paid. Capital lease obligations will be paid from the
general fund.

Principal and interest requirements to retire general obligation debt outstanding at year end are as
follows: '

General Obligation Bonds Notes Payable
Fiscal Year
Ending June 30, Principal Interest Total Principal Interest Total
2004 $2,275,000 $1,817,203 $4,092,203 $1,160,000 $60,102 $1,220,102
2005 2,580,000 1,704,477 4284477 14,000 13,595 27,595
2006 2,905,000 1,576,428 4,481,428 15,000 12,873 27,873
2007 1,060,000 1,432,028 2,492,028 15,000 12,101 27,101
2008 1,220,000 1,389,378 2,609,378 16,000 11,279 27,279
2009-2013 5,445,734 9,548,146 14,993 880 95,000 42,955 137,955
2014-2018 9,915,000 4,483,348 14,398,348 123,000 15,961 138,961
2019-2023 8,135,000 2,461,900 10,596,500 0 0 0
2024-2025 4,635,000 353,250 4,988.250 0 0 0

Totals $38,170.734  $24,766,158 $62,936.892 $1,438,000 3168.866 31,606,866
. LEASES

CAPITAL LEASES

The District has a capital lease for June 30, 2003 for a HVAC system.

The lease for the HVAC system meets the criteria of capital lease as defined by statement of
Financial Accounting Standards No. 13 “Accounting for Leases”, which defines a capital lease
generally as one that transfers benefits and risks of ownership to the lessee. Capital lease
payments will be made from the General Fund.

The following is a schedule of the future minimum lease payments'required under the capital lease
and the present value of the minimum lease payments as of fiscal year end.

Fiscal Year Long-Term
Ending June 30, Debt
2004 $215,016
2005 215,016
2006 215,016
2007 215,016
2008 215,016
2009 215,016
2010 71.672
Total Minimum Lease Payments 1,361,768
Less: Amount Representing Interest (214.545)
Present Value of Minimum Lease Payments 31,147,223
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10. PENSION PLANS

SCHOOL EMPLOYEES RETIREMENT SYSTEM

The School District contributes to the School Employees Retirement System (SERS), a cost-
sharing multiple employer defined benefit pension plan. SERS provides retirement and disability
benefits, annual cost-of-living adjustments, and death benefits to plan members and beneficiaries.
Authority to establish and amend benefits is provided by Chapter 3309 of the Ohio Revised
Code. SERS issues a publicly available, stand-alone financial report that includes financial
statements and required supplementary information. That report may be obtained by writing to
the School Employees Retirement System, 300 East Broad Street, Suite 100, Columbus, Ohio
43215-3476.

Plan members are required to contribute 9% of their annual covered salary and the School
District is required to contribute at an actuarially determined rate. The current School District
rate is 14% of annuat covered payroll. A portion of the School District’s contribution is used to
fund pension obligations with the remainder being used to fund health care benefits; for fiscal
year 2003, 8.17% of annual covered salary was the portion being used to fund pension
obligations. For fiscal year 2002, 5.46% of annual covered salary was the portion used to fund
pension obligations. The contribution requirements of plan members and employers are
established and may be amended, up to a statutory maximum amount, by the SERS’ Retirement
Board. The School District’s required contributions for penion obligations to SERS for the fiscal
years ended June 30, 2003, 2002, and 2001 were $673,476, $577,764, and $561,666 respectively;
41.9% has been contributed for fiscal year 2003 and 100% for fiscal year 2002 and 2001.

STATE TEACHERS RETIREMENT SYSTEM

The School District participates in State Teachers Retirement System of Ohio (STRS Ohio), a
cost-sharing, multiple employer public employee retirement system. STRS Ohio provides
retirement and disability benefits to members and death and survivor benefits to beneficiaries.
STRS Ohio issues a stand-alone financial report that may be obtained by writing to STRS Chio,
275 East Broad Street, Columbus, Ohio 43215-3371 or by calling (614) 227-4090.
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11.

New members have a choice of three retirement plans, a Defined Benefit (DB) Plan, a Defined
Contribution (DC) Plan and a Combined Plan. The DB Plan offers an annual retirement
allowance based on final average salary times a percentage that varies based on years of service,
or an allowance based on member contributions and earned interest matched by STRS Ohio
funds times an actuarially determined annuity factor. The DC Plan allows members to place all
their member contributions and employer contributions equal to 10.5% of earned compensation
into an investment account. Investment decisions are made by the member. A member is
eligible to receive a retirement benefit at age 50 and termination of employment. The Combined
Plan offers features of both the DC Plan and DB Plan. In the Combined Plan, member
contributions are invested by the member, and employer contributions are used to fund the
defined benefit payment at a reduced level from the regular DB Plan. DC and Combined Plan
members will transfer to the Defined Benefit Plan during their fifth year of membership unless
they permanently select the DC or Combined Plan. Existing members with less than five years
of service credit as of June 30, 2001, were given the option of making a one time irrevocable
decision to transfer their account balances from the existing DB Plan into the DC Plan or the
Combined Plan. This option expired on December 31, 2001. Benefits are established by Chapter
3307 of the Ohio Revised Code.

A DB or Combined Plan member with five or more years credited service who becomes disabled
may qualify for disability benefit. Eligible spouses and dependents of these active members who
die before retirement may qualify for survivor benefits. Members in the DC Plan who become
disabled are entitled only to their account balance. If a member dies before retirement benefits
begin, the member’s designated beneficiary is entitled to receive the member’s account balance.

For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2003, plan members were required to contribute 9.3% of their
annual covered salaries. The School District was required to contribute 14%; 13% was the
portion used to fund pension obligations. For fiscal year 2002, the portion used to fund pension
obligations was 9.5%. Contribution rates are established by the State Teachers Retirement
Board, upon recommendations of its consulting actuary, not to exceed statutory maximum rates
of 10% for members and 14% for employers. Chapter 3307 of the Ohio Revised Code provides
statutory authority for members and employer contributions.

The School District’s required contributions for pension obligations for the fiscal years ended
June 30, 2003, 2002, and 2001 were $1,982,736, $1,814,868, and $1,737,494 respectively,
82.9% has been contributed for fiscal year 2003 and 100% for fiscal year 2002 and
2001.

POST EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS

The District provides comprehensive health care benefits to retired teachers and their dependents
through the State Teachers Retirement System (STRS), and to retired non-certified employees
and their dependents through the School Employees Retirement System (SERS). Benefits
included hospitalization, physicians' fees, prescription drugs, and reimbursement of monthly
Medicare premiums. Benefit provision and the obligations to contribute are established by the
Systems based on authority granted by State statute. Both systems are funded on a pay-as-you-go
basis.
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12.

For STRS, all benefit recipients are required to pay a portion of health care cost in the form of a
monthly premium. By Ohio law, the cost of coverage paid from STRS funds shall be included in
the employer contribution rate, currently 14% of covered payroll. The Board currently allocates
employer contributions equal to 4.5% of covered payroll to the Health Care Reserve Fund for
which payments for health care benefits are paid. For the District, this amount equaled $637,308
during the 2003 fiscal year. As of July 1, 2003, eligible benefit recipients totaled 105,300. For
the fiscal year ended June 30, 2002, net health care costs paid by STRS were $354,697,000.

For SERS, coverage is made available to service retirees with ten or more fiscal years of
qualifying service credit, disability, and survivor benefit recipients. Members retiring on or after
August 1, 1989, with less than twenty-five years of service credit must pay a portion of their
premium for health care. The portion is based on years of service up to a maximum of 75% of
the premium.

For the fiscal year, employer contributions to fund health care benefits were 8.54% of covered
payroll. In addition, SERS levies a surcharge to fund health care benefits equal to 14% of the
difference between a minimum pay and the member's pay, pro-rated for partial service credit.
For the fiscal year, the minimum pay has been established at $12,400. The surcharge rate added
to the unallocated portion of the 14% employer contribution rate provides for maintenance of the
asset target level for the health care fund. For the District, this amount equaled $410,820 during
the 2003 fiscal year. The number of participants currently receiving health care benefits is
approximately 50,000. For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2002, net health care costs paid by
SERS were $182,946,777.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
GRANTS

The District receives significant financial assistance from numerous federal, state and local
agencies in the form of grants. The disbursement of funds received under these programs
generally requires compliance with terms and conditions specified in the grant agreements and is
subject to audit by the grantor agencies. Any disallowed claims resulting from such audits could
become a liability of the General Fund or other applicable funds.

However, in the opinion of management, any such disallowed claims will not have a material
effect on any of the financial statements of the individual fund types included herein or on the
overall financial position of the District as of June 30, 2003.

LITIGATION
The District's attorney estimates that all other potential claims against the District not covered by

insurance resulting from all other litigation would not materially affect the financial statements of
the District.
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13. JOINTLY GOVERNED ORGANIZATIONS

14.

The Southwest Ohio Computer Association - The Southwest Ohio Computer Association

(SWQCA) is a jointly govemned organization among a three county consortium of Ohio school

districts. The organization was formed for the purpose of applying modem technology with the
aid of computers and other electronic equipment to the administrative and instructional functions
of the member districts. Each of the governments of these schools supports SWOCA based upon
a per pupil charge dependent upon the software package utilized. SWOCA is governed by a
Board of Directors consisting of the superintendents and treasurers of member school districts.
The degree of contro! exercised by any participating school district is limited to its representation
on the Board. The Board consists of one representative from each of the participating 29 school
districts. The financial statements for SWOCA are available at the Butler County Career Center,
3603 Hamilton-Middietown Road, Hamilton, Ohio 45012.

Hamilton Clermont Cooperative Association/Unified Purchasing Association - The Hamilton
Clermont Cooperative Association/Unified Purchasing Association (HCCA) is a jointly governed
organization among a two county consortium of school districts. The Unified Purchasing
Cooperative was organized under the Hamilton Clermont Cooperative Association to benefit
member districts with a more economically sound purchasing mechanism for general school,
office and cafeteria supplies. The United Purchasing Cooperative organization is govemed by
representatives from each of the governments that created the organization, but there is no
ongoing financial interest or responsibility by the participating governments. Complete financial
statements for HCCA can be obtained from their administrative office at 7615 Harrison Avenue,
Cincinnati, Ohio 45231,

RISK MANAGEMENT

The District maintains comprehensive insurance coverage with private carriers for real property,
building contents and vehicles. Vehicle policies include liability coverage for bodily injury and
property damage. Real property and contents are 90% co-insured. The District is exposed to
various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to, and destruction of assets; errors and
omissions; injuries to employees; and natural disasters. During the fiscal year, the District
contracted with Indiana Insurance for property insurance, Nationwide for fleet insurance and
Nationwide Insurance for liability insurance coverage. Coverages provided by the above
companies are as follows:

Building and Contents - replacement cost (31,000 deductible) $76,542,339
Automobile Liability 2,000,000
Uninsured Motorists ($500 deductible) 2,000,000
General Liability
Per occurrence 1,000,000
Total per year 5,000,000

Settled claims have not exceeded this commercial coverage in any of the past three years. There
have been no significant reductions in insurance coverage from last year.
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15. INSURANCE PURCHASING POOL

16.

17.

Greater Cincinnati Insurance Consortium - The Greater Cincinnati Insurance Consortium, an
insurance purchasing pool, is a health trust formed to provide affordable and desirable dental,
life, medical and other disability group insurance for members’ employees, eligible dependents
and designated beneficiaries of such employees. The board of Directors consists of one
representative from each of the participating members and are elected by the vote of the majority
of the member school districts. The District pays premiums to a third party administrator,
Edward Paul Cerry, which in turn buys the insurance policies from various insurance companies.
Upon termination, the District shall be responsible for prompt payment of all plan liabilities
accruing as a result of such termination and maintain no right to any assets of the Consortium.
The District may terminate participation in the Consortium for the benefit of its employees upon
written notice to the Consortium delivered at least sixty days prior to the annual review date of
the policy. Financial information can be obtained from the Greater Cincinnati Insurance
Consortium at 20600 Chagrin Boulevard, Shaker Heights, Ohio 44122.

Ohio School Boards Association Workers' Compensation Group Rating Plan - The District
participates in the Ohio School Boards Association Workers' Compensation Group Rating
Program (GRP), and insurance purchasing pool. The GRP's business and affairs are conducted
by a three member Board of Directors consisting of the President, the President-Elect and the
Immediate Past President of the OSBA. The Executive Director of the OSBA, or his designee,
serves as coordinator of the program. Each year, the participating school districts pay an
enrollment fee to the GRP to cover the costs of administering the program.

STATE SCHOOL FUNDING DECISION

On December 11, 2002, the Ohio Supreme Court issued its latest opinion regarding the State’s
school funding plan. The decision reaffirmed earlier decisions that Ohio’s current school-
funding plan is unconstitutional.

The Supreme Court relinquished jurisdiction over the case and directed “...the Ohio General
Assembly to enact a school-funding scheme that is thorough and efficient...”. The District is
currently unable to determine what effect, if any, this decision will have on its future State
funding and its financial operations.

COMPLIANCE AND ACCOUNTABILITY

The following individual funds had a deficit in fund balance at year end:

Fund Deficit
Special Revenue Funds:
Career Education $568
Disadvantaged Pupil Impact Aid 6,074
Title VI-B Preschool 4,710
Title V1 . 2,941
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The deficit in fund balance was primarily due 1o accruals in GAAP. The general fund is liable
for any deficit in these funds and will provide operating transfers when cash is required not when
accruals occur.

The following funds had an excess of appropriations over estimated revenues plus beginning
balance for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2003:

Original Budget

Special Revenue Fund:
Public School Support $12,091
Auxiliary Services 96,270
Disadvantaged Pupil Impact Aid 11,066
Vocational Education 7,874
Safe School Hot Line 4,440
Title VI-B Preschool 145,355
Title VI 7,087
EHA Preschool 2,083

Capital Projects Fund:
Permanent Improvement 50,000
SchoolNet 1,993

Final Budget
Special Revenue Fund:

Auxiliary Services 28,077

Vocational Education 2,490

Title VI-B Preschool 2,192

Drug-Free Schools 3,097
Capital Projects Fund:

Permanent Improvement 12,008

State statute requires all funds to have expenditures and encumbrances within approved
appropriation limits. The following appropriation accounts had an excess of expenditures over
appropriations for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2003, at the legal level of control.

Special Revenue Fund:

Career Education $2,490

Management Information 8,550

Disadvantaged Pupil Impact Aid 34,940

SchoolNet Professional Development 308
Capital Projects Fund:

Building 25,355
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18. FUND BALANCE RESERVES FOR SET-ASIDES

The District is required by State statute to annually set aside in the general fund an amount based
on a statutory formula for the purchase of textbooks and other instructional materials and an
equal amount for the acquisition and construction of capital improvements. Amounts not spent
by year-end or offset by similarly restricted resources received during the year must be held in
cash at year-end and carried forward to be used for the same purposes in future years.

For fiscal year ended June 30, 2003, the District was no longer required to set aside funds in the
budget reserve set-aside, with the exception of refund monies received from the Bureau of

Workers’ Compensation, which must be spent for specified purposes.

The following cash basis information describes the change in the year-end set-aside amounts for
textbooks and capital acquisition. Disclosure of this information is required by State statute.

Capital

Textbooks Acquisition
Set-aside Reserve Balance as of June 30,2002  § 0 $ 0
Current Year Set-aside Requirement 546,594 546,594
Qualified Disbursements (928,719) (300,621)
Current Year Offsets 0 (245.973)
Set-Aside Reserve Balance as of June 30,2003 § 0 F ___ 0O
Restricted Cash as of June 30, 2003 ¥ 1] $F 0O
Carried Forward as of June 30, 2003 ($382,125)

Budget

Stabilization

$ 336,785

Offset credits for capital activity during the year exceeded the amount required for the set-aside.
Qualifying disbursements and carryover from prior years for textbooks totaled $928,719, resulting in

$382,125 for carryover to offset textbook requirements in future years.

47



19. INTERFUND TRANSACTIONS

Interfund transactions at June 30, 2003, consisted of the following individual fund receivables
and payables:

Interfund Loan Interfund Loan
Receivable Payable
General Fund $214,667
Special Revenue Fund:
Public School Support $90
Athletic 14,707
Career Education 568
Title VI-B Preschool 89,689
Title I 13,219
Title VI 21,391
Drug-Free Schools 3,199
EHA Preschool 9,420
Improving Teacher Quality 45,467
Continuous Improvement Grant 4,728
Enterprise Fund;
Food Service 12.189
$214.667 $214.667

20. PRIOR YEAR DEFEASANCE OF DEBT

On April 1, 1999, the District issued $43,140,734 in General Obligation Bonds with interest rates
from 3.2% to 5.25% to advance refund $13,145,000 of outstanding 1992 General Obligation
Bonds with interest rates from 4.1% to 7.1%. The net proceeds were used to purchase U.S.
Government Securities. Those Securities were deposited in an irrevocable trust with an escrow
agent to provide for all future debt service payments on the 1992 general obligation bonds. As a
result, the 1992 general obligation bonds are considered defeased and the liability for those bonds
has been removed from the debt service fund. The amount of outstanding refunded debt at fiscal
year-end was $9,858,750.
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Loveland City School District

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance

Budget and Acwal (Non-GAAP Budgetary Basis)
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2003

Revenues:

Taxes

Tuition and Fees
Inlergovernmenlal
Other Revenucs

Total Revenues

Expendilures;
Current;
Instruction:
Regular
Special
Yocational
Orher
Suppon Services:
Pupil
Instructional Stafl
General Administration
School Administration
Fiseal
Business
Operations and Maintcnance
Pupil Transportation
Central
Community Scrvices
Extracurricular Activities
Debt Service:
Principal Retirement
Interest and Fiscal Charges

Total Expenditures

Excess of Revenues Over (Under) Expenditures

Other {inancing sources {uses):
Advances In
Advances (Om)
Transfers In
Transfers (Cut)

Total (hher Financing Sources {Uses)

Net Change in Fund Balance

Fund Balange Beginning of Year (includes
prior year encumbrances appropriated)

Fund Balance End of Year

Ser eccompanying notes 10 the required supplementary information.

General
Fund
Original Final Variance from
Budget Budgct Actual Final Budget
$16,710,609 $17,706,513 $17,878,807 $172274
711,336 423,690 761,064 337,374
11,522,625 11,860,562 12,328,143 467,581
218,033 12,500 233,275 220,775
29,162,603 30,003,285 31,201,289 1,198,004
13,031,931 13,592,504 13,337,988 254,516
2,741,422 3,260,498 2,805,805 454,693
234 240 235,563 239,741 (4,178)
137,590 120,000 140,821 (20,821)
1,272 405 1,328,452 1,302,288 26,164
869,733 888,432 890,159 {1,727
167,863 208,287 171,805 36,482
1,850,173 1,951,316 1,893,625 57,691
750,731 759,438 768,362 (8,924)
158,018 158,940 164,729 (2,789)
3,060,644 2,750,948 3,132,524 (371,576)
2,405,439 2,359,924 2,461,931 (102,007)
815,242 921,581 834,388 87,193
169,305 235,055 173281 61,7714
&04,355 600,737 518,548 {17,811}
147,325 147,325 147,325 0
66,120 69,416 71,133 {1,717)
28,482,536 29,598,416 29,151,453 446,963
680,067 404,869 2,049,836 1,644 967
9,872 [ 10,562 10,562
(193,496) 0 (198,040) {198,040}
312393 255420 334,232 78,812
(371,259) {50,00)) (380.019) {330,019}
{242,530) 205420 {233,265) (438,685)
437,537 610,289 1,816,571 1,206,282
5,348 537 5,348,537 5,348,537 0
35,786,074 $5,95B,826 57,165,108 $1,206,282
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LOVELAND CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO THE REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
For The Year Ended June 30, 2003

1. BUDGETARY PROCESS

All funds, except agency funds, are legally required to be budgeted and appropriated. The major documents
prepared are the tax budget, the appropriations resolution and the certificate of estimated resources which
are prepared on the budgetary basis of accounting. The tax budget demonstrates a need for existing or
increased tax rates, The certificate of estimated resources establishes a limit on the amount that the Board of
Education may appropriate. The appropriation resolution is Board’s authorization to spend resources and
sets annual limits on expenditures plus encumbrances at the level of control selected by Board. The legal
level of control has been established by Board at the fund Jevel. Any budgetary modifications at this level
may only be made by resolution of the Board of Education.

The certificate of estimated resources may be amended during the year if projected increases or decreases in
revenue are identified by the School District Treasurer. The amounts reported as the original budgeted
armnounts on the budgetary statements reflect the amounts on the certificate of estimated resources when the
original appropriations were adopted. The amounts reported as the final budgeted amounts on the budgetary
statements reflect the amounts on the final amended certificate of estimated resources issued during the
fiscal year 2003.

The appropriation resolution is subject to amendment by the Board throughout the year with the restriction
that appropriations cannot exceed estimated resources. The amounts reported as the original budgeted
amounts reflect the first appropriation resolution for that fund that covered the entire year, including
amounts automatically carried forward from prior years. The amounts reported as the final budgeted
amounts represent the final appropriation amounts passed by Board during the year.

While the District is reporting financial position, results of operations and changes in fund balance on the
basis of generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP), the budgetary basis as provided by law is based
upon accounting for certain transactions on a basis of cash receipts, disbursements and encumbrances. The
Combined Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances - Budget (Non-GAAP
Basis) and Actual presented on the budgetary basis to provide a meaningful comparison of actual results
with the budget. The major differences between the budget basis and GAAP basis are as follows:

1. Revenues are recorded when received in cash (budget basis) as opposed to when susceptible to
accrual (GAAP basis).

2. Expenditures are recorded when paid in cash (budget basis) as opposed to when the liability is
incurred {GAAP basis).

3. Encumbrances are treated as expenditures for all funds (budget basis) rather than as a reservation of
fund balance for governmental fund types and expendable trust funds (GAAP basis).

4. Advances in and advances out are operating transactions (budget basis) as opposed to balance sheet
. transactions.
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The following table summarizes the adjustments necessary to reconcile the GAAP basis statements to the
budgetary basis statements for the general fund.

Net Change in Fund Bal_a.ncc
General
GAAP Basis - $3,238,203
Net Adjustment for Revenue Accruals (1,315,986)
Net Adjustment for Expenditure Accruals (80,561)
Encumbrances - (25,085
Budget Basis _ $1.816.571
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Loveland City School District
Combining Balance Sheet
Nonmajor Governmental Funds
Junc 30, 2001

Assels:
Equity in Pooled Cash ond Investments
Receivables:

Accounts

Intergovernmental

Total Assets

Liabilities and Fund Balances:
Linbilities:

Accounts Payable

Accrued Wages and BeneFits
Interfund Payable

Deferred Reveoue

Total Liabilities

Fund Balances:
Reserved for Encumbrances

Unreserved, Undesignated, Reported in:

Special Revenue Funds
Capilal Projects Funds

Total Fund Balances

Tatal Liabilities and Fund Balances

Nonmajor Nonmajor Total
Special Capital Neonmajor
Revenue Projecls Govemmental
Funds Funds Funds
5425239 $1,810 $427.049
2917 0 2917
558.966 0 558,966
1,013,922 1,810 1,015,732
14,587 0 14,587
120,552 0 120,552
202,478 0 202478
371,864 0 371,864
709,481 0 703,481
155,730 0 155,730
148,711 0 148,711
0 1,810 1,810
304,441 1.810 306,251
$1,013,922 51810 $1,015,732
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Loveland City Scheol District

Combining Swtement of Revennes, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance

Nonmajor Governmental Funds
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2003

Revenues:

Investmeni Earnings
Intergovernmental
Extracuwrricular Activitics
Other Revenues

Total Revenues

Expendinres:
Currenl:
Instruction:
Regular
Special
Other
Support Services:
Pupil
Instructional Staff
School Administraton
Business
Pupil Transponation
Central
Community Services
Extracwrmicular Activities

Total Expenditures

Excess ol Revenues Over (Under) Expenditures

Other Financing Sources (Uses):
Transfers In
Transfers {(Out)
Total Other Finaneing Sowrces (Uses)
Net Change in Fund Balance
Fund Balance Beginning of Year

Fund Balance End of Year

Nonmajor Nonmajor Total
Special Capital Nonmajor
Revenue Projects Governmenial
Funds Funds Funds
5861 s0 5861
1318,977 53,126 1,372,103
374,121 (] 374,121
19,978 0 19978
1,713.937 53,126 1,767,063
227,130 56,576 283,706
306,654 0 306,654
4,000 0 4,000
178,588 0 178,588
156,642 0 156,642
32 0 32
0 29,729 29,729
0 359,312 39930
76,736 0 76,736
434213 0 434,213
361,420 0 361,420
1,745,415 485,627 2231042
{31,478) (432,501} (463,979}
12,404 50,000 62,404
(13.966) o {13.966)
{1,562) 50,000 48438
(33,040) {382,501) (415,541}
337,481 384311 721,792
$304,441 $1,810 $306,251
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Loveland City School District
Combining Balance Shect
Nonmajor Special Revenve Funds
Junc 30, 2003

Assets:
Equity in Pooled Cash and lnvestments
Receivables:

Accounts

Intergovernmental

Total Asscls

Liabilities and Fund Balances:
Liabilitics:

Accounts Payable

Accrued Wages and Benebits
Interfund Payable

Deferred Revenue

Total Liabilities

Fund Balances:
Reserved for Encumbrances

Unreserved, Undesignated, Reported in:

Speeial Revenue Funds
Tota] Fund Balances

Total Liabilitics and Fund Balances

Public School Leaming Venutre Auxiliary
Support Links Capital East Athletic Services
592,083 $31,463 50 $113.275 §71,591
o o 0 29,17 0
0 48,628 0 0 0
92,083 80,091 0 142 992 71,591
0 0 0 0 12,988
0 0 ] 0 32,646
o0 0 i} 14,707 0
0 48,628 0 o 0
90 48,628 0 14,707 45,634
2816 0 0 4,871 58,603
89,177 31,463 0 123,414 (32,646)
91,993 31,463 9 128,285 25957
§52.083 580,091 50 $142,992 571,591

586



Career Teacher Management School Building Entry Year American Disadvantaged
Education Development Information Inccutive Program Sign Lanpuage Pupil Impact Aid
50 50 $6,561 514,835 50 5487 8759
0 0 1] 0 0 o 0
Q 0 1] 50,080 0 0 0
0 0 6,561 64,835 0 487 759
1] 0 0 1] ] 0 0
0 0 6,041 1] 0 0 6,833
568 0 0 0 4] (] 1]
0 0 1] 50,000 0 0 1]
568 1] 6,041 50,000 0 0 6,833
0 1] 1] 0 0 0 0
(568) 0 520 14,835 0 487 {6,074)
(568) 0 520 14,835 0 487 {6,074)
S0 50 36,561 £64,835 S0 5487 $759
{continuzd)
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Loveland City School District
Combining Balance Sheet

Nonmajor Special Revenue Funds
June 30, 2003
Scheol Net
Nerwork Professional Ohio Summer Vocauopal
Connectivity Development Reads Inlervention Education

Assels:
Equity in Pooled Cash and Investments 50 $3242 50 50 50
Receivables:

Accounts 1] o 0 0 0

Intergovernmental 0 4] 6,000 0 0
Total Asscts 0 3242 6,000 0 0
Liabilities and Fund Balances:
Liabilities:
Accaunts Payable [{] 0 0 0 0
Accrued Wages and Benefits ] 0 0 0 0
Interfund Payable 1] 0 0 1] 0
Delerred Revenue 0 0 6,000 0 0
Total Liabilities 0 1] 6,000 0 0
Fund Balances:
Reserved {or Encumbrances 0 100 0 0 0
Unreserved, Undesignaled, Reported in:

Special Revenue Funds 0 3,142 4] 0 0
Total Fund Balances o 1242 1] 0 [
Total Liabilities and Fund Balanees 30 §3.242 56,000 $0 50
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Safe School Eisenhower Tille VI-B Carl Drug Free

Hat Line Granl Preschool Perking Title 1 Tide VI Schools
%0 $0 524,028 0 $15 567 $8,099 $4878
0 0 0 1] 0 0 ¢
0 14,495 315,579 4] 13,218 35434 16,007
1] 14,495 339,607 0 28,785 43.533 20,885
0 0 1,599 0 0 1] 0
1] 1] 27,139 0 12,128 11,040 0
0 0 29,689 0 13219 21,391 3,199
0 14,495 225,890 0 0 14,043 12,408
0 14,405 344317 1] 25347 46474 16,007
0 0 22,428 0 15,565 8,100 48717
[1] 0 {27,138) 0 (12,127 (11,041) 1
0 0 (4,710} 1] 3,438 (2,941) 4,878
S0 $14.495 $339,607 S0 $28.785 543,513 $20.885
{cantmued)
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Loveland City Schoel District
Combining Balance Shect
Nowmajor Special Revenue Funds
June 30, 2003

Assets:
Equity in Pooled Cash and lovestments
Reccivables:

Accounts

Intergovernmental

Total Asscis

Liabilities and Fund Balances:
Liabilities:

Accounts Payable

Accrued Wages and Benefils
Interfund Payable

Deferred Revenue

Total Liabilities

Fund Balances.
Reserved for Encumbrznces

Unreserved, Undestgnated, Reported in:

Special Revenue Funds
Total Fund Balances

Total Liabilities and Fund Balances

Toul
Nonmajor
EHA Telecomm Tmproving Continuous Special Revenue
Preschool Act Teacher Cality Improvement Grant Funds
50 50 $33,711 54,660 $425239
0 o 0 0 29717
9,420 0 45467 4,718 558,966
5420 0 79,178 9378 1,013,922
0 o 0 0 14,587
0 i} 24,725 0 120,552
9,420 0 45,467 4,728 202478
0 0 0 0 371,864
9420 0 70,192 4,728 709,481
0 0 33,711 4,659 155,730
0 0 {24,725) {9 148,711
0 0 8,986 4,650 304,441
39420 80 579,178 59378 £1,013,922
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Loveland City Sehool District

Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance

Nonmajor Special Revenuc Funds
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 306, 2003

Revenues:

Investment Eamings
Intergovernmental
Extracurricular Activities
(nher Revenues

Total Revenucs

Expenditures:
Curreni:
Instruction:
Repular
Special
Other
Suppornt Services:
Pupil
Instuctional S1aff
Scheol Administralion
Cenitral
Community Services
Extracurricular Activitias

Total Expenditures
Excess of Revenues Over (Under) Expenditures
Other Financing Sources {Uses):
Transfers In
Transfers (Out)
Total Other Financing Sowrces (Uses)

Net Change in Fund Balance

Fund Balance Beginning of Year

Fund Balance End of Year

Public School Learning, Veoutre Auxiliary
Supporl Links Capital East Athletic Services

50 50 80 s0 3861

o 21245 0 o 400,018

176,067 0 0 193,054 0

19,978 0 0 0 0

196,045 21245 0 198,054 400,879

0 13,997 1,634 0 0

o 282 0 ] 0

0 0 0 0 0

0 400 0 0 0

0 0 0 0 0

0 ] 0 0 g

0 0 0 0 0

0 1) 0 0 410,304

233,971 1} 0 127449 0

233,871 14,679 1,634 127449 410.904
{37.926) 6,566 (1,634) 70,605 {10,025)

2,651 0 0 0 0

0 0 0 0 ]

2,651 0 0 0 )
(35275) 6,566 (1,634} 70,605 (10,025)

127,268 24,897 1,634 57,680 35982

391,993 831,463 50 5128285 525857
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Carcer Teacher Management School Building Entry Year American Disadvantaged

Educetion Development Information Incentive Program Sign Lanpuage Pupil impact Aid
$0 50 30 $0 $0 s0 S0

0 0 15,111 0 4,000 0 25,946

0 0 0 0 0 ] 0]

0 [1] 0 0 [ 0 0

0 0 15,111 0 4,000 0 25,946
2,49} 0 0 345 8,615 0 0
0 0 0 0 0 0 15,269

0 0 0 0 4,000 0 o

0 0 0 0 0 0 o

0 1,027 0 0 o 0 4]

0 0 0 0 1] o 0

0 0 36,329 0 4] ] 1]

0 0 ] 0 0 0 0

0 0 1 0 i} 0 0
2491 1,027 36,329 345 12,615 0 35,269
{2,491) {1.027) {21,218} {345) {8,615) 0 {9323)
] 0 0 0 0 0 2,753

0 0 0 ] 0 0 0

1] 0 0 0 1] 0 2,753
(2.491) (1,027} (21,218) (345) {B,615) 0 430
1,923 1,027 21,738 15,180 8,615 487 (6,504)
($568) S0 §520 514,835 50 $487 {56,074)
{contmaued)
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Loveland Cily School District

Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes m Fund Balance

Nonmajor Special Revenue Funds
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2003

Revenues:

Tovestment Eamings
Imergovernmental
Extracurricular Activities
Other Revenoes

Total Revenues

Expenditures:
Current:
Instruction:
Regular
Special
Otber
Support Services:
Fupil
Instructional Seafl
School Administration
Central
Community Services
Extracumricular Activities

Toial Expendirures
Excess of Revennes Over (Under} Expenditures
Other Financing Sources (Uses):
Transfers [n
Transfers (Out)
Tatal Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Net Change in Fund Balance
Fund Balance Beginning of Ycar

Fund Palance End of Year

School Net

Network Professional Ohio Summer Vocational

Conpectivity Development Reads Intervention Education
50 50 %0 50 50
21,000 8,050 4,000 0 5,384
0 ] ] 0 1]
0 0 0 0 li]
21.000 8,050 4,000 0 5384
0 0 1] 16,469 5,184
0 0 0 0 0
1] 0 0 0 ]
0 0 0 0 0
0 5,801 7,974 ] 0
0 0 1] 0 a
38,500 0 0 0 0
0 o 1] 0 0
1] 0 0 [ 0
38,500 5,801 7,974 16,469 5,384
{17.500) 2,249 {3.974) (16,469} 0
0 0 0 0 0
0 0 0 0 0
0 0 0 0 0
(17.500) 2,249 (3,974) {16,469) 1}
17,500 993 3974 16,465 0
$0 53242 $0 50 30
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Safe Scheol Eisenhower Title YI-B Carl Drug Free
Hot Line Grant Preschoo! Perkins Title 1 Title V1 Schools

S0 $0 50 S0 50 S0 50
8,000 1,576 346,795 6,179 239,810 35,845 19,593
0 ] 1] 0 0 1 o

1] 1] 1] 0 0 4] o
8,000 1,576 346,795 6,179 239,810 35,845 19,593
7,804 0 0 6,239 0 35,521 31,926
0 ] 74,164 0 180,442 10,447 4]

0 0 0 1] (] (1] 4]
3,881 1] 157,466 0 1] 3,165 593
1,782 10,980 107,256 ¢ 5,929 1] 0
1] 0 32 4] (] 0 0

o 1] 0 0 1] 1] 1]

0 259 21,789 (] (] 1,020 241

[{] 0 0 ] [{] 0 0
13,467 11239 360,707 6,239 186,371 50,153 32,760
{5,467 {9,663) {13,912) (60} 53,439 (14,308) {13,167}
] 0 0 0 0 0 0

0 0 1 1] 1] 0 Q

1] [1] 0 1] 0 1 0
(5467 (9,663) {13,912) (1] 53,439 {14,308) {13,167}
5467 9,663 9,202 60 {50,001} 11,367 18,045
50 s0 {54,710} 30 $3438 {$2,941) $4.878
{continued)
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Lovcland City School District

Combining Staicment of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance

Neamajor Special Revenue Funds
For the Fiscal Year Ended Junc 30, 2003

Revenues:

Investment Earnings
Intergovernmental
Extracurricular Activitics
Other Revenues

Total Revenues

Expenditures:
Current:
Instruction:
Repular
Special
Other
Support Services:
Pupil
Instructional Stafl
School Administration
Central
Community Services
Extracurricular Activitics

Total Expenditures
Excess of Revenues Over (Under) Expenditures
Other Finaneing Sources (Uses):
Transiers In
Transfers (Out)
Total Other Financing Sources {Lses)
Net Change m Fund Balaoce
Fund Balance Begmuing of Year

Fund Balance End of Year

Total
Noomajor
EHA Telecomm Improving Continzous Special Revenue
Preschool Acl Teacher Quality Improvement Grant Funds
50 50 50 S0 $861
13,083 4238 112,059 27,045 1,318,977
o 0 0 0 374,121
0 0 0 0 19,678
13,083 4238 112,059 27,045 1,713,937
0 0 96,705 (] 227,130
0 0 0 6,050 306,654
0 0 0 0 4,000
13,083 0 0 0 178,588
0 0 6,368 9,525 156,642
0 0 0 0 2
0 0 0 1,907 76,736
0 0 0 0 434213
0 0 0 1] 361420
13,083 0 103,073 17,482 1,745415
0 4,238 8,986 9,563 {11,478)
0 4] 0 0 12 404
0 {13,966) 0 0 {13,965)
0 (13,966} 0 0 {1,562)
0 (5,728) 8,986 9.563 (33,0400
0 9,728 1] {4.913) 337,481
S0 50 58,986 $4,650 $304.441
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Loveland City Schopl District
Combining Balance Sheet

Nonmajor Capital Projects Funds
Jume 30, 2003
Total
Nonmajor
Permanent Capilal Projects
Improvement Building SchoolNet Funds
Assels:
Equirty in Pocled Cash and Investments $1,810 S0 50 51,810
Total Assels 1,810 0 0 1,810
Liabilities and Fund Balances:
Liabilities:
Acconnts Payable 0 0 0 0
Tota] Liabilities 0 0 0 0
Fund Balances:
Reserved for Encumbrances 1] 0 1] (]
Uareserved, Undesignated, Reported in:
Capiual Projects Funds 1,810 0 1] 1.810
.Toial Fund Balances 1,810 0 0 1,810
Total Liabilities and Fund Balances $1.810 0 50 51,810
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Laveland City School District

Combining Statement of Revenucs, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance

Nonmajor Capital Projects Funds
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2003

Revenues:
Intergovernmental

Total Revenues
Expenditures:
Current:
Instruction:
Regular
Support Services:
Business
Pupil Traosportation
Total Expendinires
Excess of Revenues Over (Under) Expenditures

Other Finanging Sources (Uses):
Transfers 1n

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Net Change in Fund Balance
Fund Balance Beginning ol Year

Fund Balance End of Year

Total
Nonmajor
Permaneul Capital Projecis
Improvement Building SchonlNet Funds
50 S0 $53,126 $53,126
0 0 53,126 -53,126
0 0 56,576 56,576
0 29,729 0 29,729
399322 0 0 392322
398322 29,729 56,576 485,627
(392,322) {29.729) (3,450} {432,501}
50,000 0 0 50,000
50,000 0 0 50,000
{349.322) (29,729) (3.450) {(382,501)
351,132 29,729 3,450 384311
51,810 $0 30 $1,810
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Loveland City School District

Sutement of Changes In Assets and Liabilities
Agency Fund

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2003

Student
Aclivity
Beginning Ending
Balance Additions Deductions Balance
Assels:
Restricted Cash and Iovestments $71.235 $15,718 0 $86,953
Total Assels §71,235 $15,718 S0 $86,953
Liabilities:
Accounts Payable §275 $0 S0 $275
Other Liabililies 70,960 15,718 0 86,678
Total Liabilities $71.235 $15718 50 §86,953

69



Loveland City School District

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Chamges in Fund Balance
Budget and Actual (Non-GAAP Budgetary Basis)

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2003

Public School
Suppont
Fund
Original Final Variance from
Budget Budget Actual Final Budpet

Revenues:
Extracumicular Activitics $176,8%6 $175300 $176,067 5767
Other Revenues 20072 31,250 19,978 {17.272)
Total Revenues 196,968 212,550 196,045 {16,505)
Expenditures:
Current

Exwacwricular Activities 339,112 320,572 236,815 83,757
Total Expenditures 335,112 320,572 236,815 83,757
Excess of Revenues Over (Under) Expenditures {142,144) {108,022) (40,770} 67,252
Other financing sources (uses):

Advances In 368 0 366 366

Advances {Out) {n 0 n (n

Transfers In 2664 0 2,652 2,652
Total Other Financing Sources {Uses) 3,031 0 3,017 3,017
Net Change in Fund Balance {135,113) (108,022) (37,753} 70,269
Fund Balance Beginning of Year (includes

prior year encumbrances appropriated) 127,022 127,022 127,022 4]
Fund Balance End of Year ($12,091) 519,000 $89,260 §70.269
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Loveland City School District

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance

Budgei and Actual (Non-GAAFP Budgetary Basis)
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2003

Revenues:
Intergovernmental
(Onher Revenues

Total Revenues

Expenditores:
Current:
Instruetion:
Regular
Special
Support Services:

Pupl
Instructional Staff

Total Expenditures

Net Change in Fund Balanee

Fund Balance Beginning of Year (includes
prior year cncumbrances appropriated)

Fund Balance End of Year

Leaming
Links
Fund
Origmal Finat Variance from
Budpet Budget Actual Final Budgel
$22,400 521,245 $21.245 $0
0 1,000 0 {1,000)
27,400 22,245 21,245 {1,000)
22 551 31,984 13,997 17,587
454 400 282 118
644 3,756 400 3,156
0 10,000 0 10,000
23,649 46,140 14,679 31,461
3,751 {23,895) 6,566 30,461
24,805 24,895 24,895 0
528,646 $1,000 §31,461 530,461
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Loveland City School District

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance
Budget and Actual (Non-GAAFP Budgetary Basis)

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2003

Venture
Capital East
Fund

Original Fmal Variance ffom

Budget Budpet Actual Final Budpet
Revenues;
Taxes $25,000 $0 50 50
Total Revenues 25,000 0 0 ]
Expenditures:
Cutrent:

Instmction:

Reguler 1,634 1,634 1,634 0
Total Expenditures 1,634 1,634 1,634 1]
Nect Change in Find Batance 23366 (1,634) {1,634) 0
Fund Balance Beginning of Year (includes

priar year encumbrances spproprialed) 1,634 1,634 1,634 0
Fund Balance End of Year $25.000 0 $0 S0
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Loveland City School District

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance
Budget and Actual (Non-GAAP Budgewary Basis)

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2003

Athlctic
Fuod

Original Fipal ] Varience from

Budget Budgct Actual Final Budget
Revenues:
Extracurricular Activitics $110,000 §145,175 $168,337 §23,162
Total Revenues 110,000 145,175 168,337 23,162
Expenditures:
Current:

Extracurricular Aclivilies . 132,909 149,775 141,919 7,856
Total Expenditures 132,909 149,775 141,919 7.856
Net Change in Fund Balance {22,909) (4,600) 26418 31,018
Fund Balanee Begimming of Year (includes

prior year encumbrances appropriated) 81,986 81,986 81,986 0
Fund Palance Eod of Year 559,077 $77,386 3$108,404 531,018
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Loveland City School District

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Batance
Budget and Actual (Non-GAAP Budgeiary Basis)

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2003

Auxiliary
Services
Fund
Original Final Varience from
Budget Budget Actual Final Budpet
Revenues:
Interest $731 $0 3977 89717
Inierpovernmental 299,269 396,270 400,018 3,748
Total Revenucs 300,000 396,270 400,995 4,725
Expendinmres:
Cument-

Community Services . 471,173 499,250 475,898 23,352
Tatal Expenditures 471,173 499,250 475,898 23352
Net Change in Fund Balance - (171,173) (102,980} {74,903) 28,077
Fund Balance Beginning of Year {includes

prior year encumbrances appropriated) 74,903 74,903 74,503 0
Fund Balance End of Year (§96,270) {528,077) 0 $28,077
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Loveland City Schoot District

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance
Budget and Actual (Non-GAAP Budgetary Basis)

For the Fiscal Year Fnded June 30, 2003

Career
Education
Fund
Criginal Final Varianee fom
Budgel Budget Actual Final Budpet
Revenuss:
Taxes $2,500 80 50 50
Tatal Revenues 2,500 0 0 0
Expenditures:
Current:
Instruction: :

Regular 0 0 2490 {2,450}
Total Expenditiures 1] 0 2490 (2,450)
Net Change in Fund Balance 2,500 0 (2,490) {2,490)
Fund Balance Bepioning of Year (includes

pricr year encumbrances apgropriated) 2,490 2,490 2490 0
Fund Balance End of Year 34,990 $2.,490 50 {$2.490)
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Loveland City School District

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance
Budpget and Actual (Non-GAAP Budgetary Basis)

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2003

Teacher
DBevelopment
Fund

Original Final Variance from

Budpet Budget Actual Final Budgct
Revenues:
Taxes 516,000 S0 $0 50
Total Revenues 16,000 0 0 1
Expendinmes:
Current:

Support Services:

Instructional Staff 1,026 1.026 1,026 0
Total Expenditures : 1026 1,026 1,026 0
et Change in Fund Balance 14,974 {1,026) (1,026) 0
Fund Dalance Begioning of Year (includes

prior year encumbmnces appropriated) 1,026 1,026 1,026 1
Fund Balince End of Year $16,000 50 50 $0
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Loveland City School District

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance
Budget and Actual (Non-GAAP Budgetary Basis)

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2003

Management
Inlormation
Fund
Original Fmal Variance fom
Budget Budpet Actual Fina] Budget
Revenues:
Intergovernmental $10,000 S0 $i5,111 515,111
Total Revenues 10,000 0 15,111 15,111
Expendinmes:
Current:
Support Services:

Central 21,738 21,738 30288 {8.550)
Total Expenditures 21,738 21,738 30,288 (8,550)
Net Change in Fund Balance (11,738) {21,739) (15,177 6,561
Fund Balanee Beginning of Year (includes

prior year entumbrances approprialed) 21,738 21,738 21,738 1]
Fund Balance End of Year 510,000 50 $6,561 $6,56!
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Loveland City School District

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance
Budget and Actual (INon-GAAP Budgetary Basis)

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2003

School Building
Ineentive
Fund
Original Final Variance from
Budget Budget Actual Final Budget
Revenues:
Taxes 50 50 30 S0
Total Revenues 0 0 0 0
Expenditures:
Current-
Instruetion:
Repgular 15,180 8,540 345 8,195
Support Services:

Instructional Stafl 1] 6,640 0 6,640
Total Expenditures 15.180 15,180 M5 14,835
Net Change in Fund Balance {15,180) (15,180) (34%) 14,835
Fund Balance Beginning of Year (includes

prior year encumbrances appropriated) 15,180 15,180 15,180 0
Fiund Balence End of Year $0 50 $14,835 $14,835
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Loveland City School Districi

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance
Budget and Actual (Non-GAAP Budgetary Basis)

For the Fiscal Year Ended Junc 30, 2003

Entry Year
Program
Fund
Qriginal Final Variance from
Budget Budget Actual Final Budget
Revenues: ’
Iniergovernmental $28.000 54,000 $4.000 50
Total Revenues 28,000 4,000 4,000 0
Expenditures:
Current:
Instruetion:
Repular 5,883 8,515 8,615 0
Other 2.732 4,000 4,000 0
Total Expenditures : 8,615 12,615 12,615 0
Net Change in Fund Balance 19385 {8,613) (8,613) 1]
Fund Balonce Bepinning of Year (includes
prior year cncumbrances appropriated) 8,615 8,615 8,615 0
Fund Balance End of Year $28.000 50 S0 S0
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Loveland City School District

Schedule of Revennes, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance
Budget and Actual (Non-GAAP Budgetary Basis)

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2003

American
Sign Lianpuage
Fund

Origmal Final Variance from

Budpet Budget Acnal Final Bodget
Revenues:
Taxes 30 S0 50 S0
Total Revenues [{] 0 0 0
Expenditures:
Churent:

Instruction:

Repular 486 436 (] 436
Total Expenditures 486 486 0 486
Net Change in Fund Balanee (4886) (486} 0 486
Fund Balance Beginning of Year (includes

prior year encumbrances appropriated) 486 486 486 0
Fund Balance End of Year S0 50 5486 5486
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Loveland City School District

Schedute of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance

Budget and Actual (Non-GAAP Budgetary Basis)

For the Fiseal Year Ended June 30, 2003

Revenues:
Interpovernmental

Tolal Revenues
Expenditures:
Curyent:
Instruction:
Special
Total Expenditures
Excess of Revenues Over (Under) Expenditures

(Oher financing sources (uses):
Transfers In

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Net Chanpe in Fund Belance

Fund Balance Beginning of Year (includes
prior year encimbrances appropriated)

Fund Balance End of Year

Disadvantaged
Pupil Impact Act
Fumd
Criginal Final Variance from
Budget Budpet Actual Final Budget
$18,897 50 525,946 525,946
18,897 0 25,946 25,946
37,066 0 34,940 {34,940)
37,066 0 34,540 {34,940)
{18,169} 0 {8,994) (8.9%4)
7,103 0 9,753 9,753
7,103 0 9,753 9,753
{11,066) 0 759 759
1} 0 0 0
($11,066) 50 5759 575%
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Laveland City School District

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance
Budget and Actual (Non-GAAP Budgetary Basis)

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2003

Network
Connectivity
Fund

Original Final Variance from

Budgel Budget Actual Final Budpet
Revenues:
Intergovernmental S0 $21,000 $21,000 50
Tatal Revenues 0 21,000 21,000 0
Expenditures:
Current:

Support Services;

Central 17,560 38,500 38,500 0
Total Expendinures 17,500 38,500 38,500 0
Net Change in Fund Belance (17,500) {17,500) {17,500) 0
Fund Balance Bepinning of Year (includes

prior year encumbrances appropriated) 17,500 17.500 17,500 0
Fund Balance End of Year S0 50 S0 §0
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Loveland City Schoel District

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance
Budget and Actual (Non-GAAP Budgetary Basis)

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2003

School Net
Professional
Development
Fund
Oripinal Final Variance from
Budpet Budget Actual Final Budget
Revenues:
Intergovenmental 50 54,600 $8,050 $1,450
Total Revenucs ] 4,600 8.050 3,450
Expenditures:
Current:
Support Services:

Instruetional StafT 993 5,593 5,901 (308)
Total Expendithures 993 5,593 5,901 {308}
Net Change o Fund Balance (993) {993) 2,14% 3,142
Fund Balance Beginning of Year (includes

prior year epcurnbrances appropriated) 993 993 993 0
Fund Balanee Eod of Year 50 50 §3,142 $3,142
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Loveland City Schoo] District

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance
Budget and Actual (Non-GAAP Budgetary Basis)

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2003

Ohio Reads
Fund

Originat Final Variaoce from

Budget Budget Actual Final Budget
Revenues:
Intergovemnmental $2.000 £4,600 $4,000 30
Total Revenues 2,000 4,000 4,000 0
Expenditures:
Current:

Support Services:

Instructional Staff 3,914 7.974 7.974 0
Total Expendinmes 3,974 7,974 T.914 0
Net Change in Fund Balance (1,979 (3,9714) {3,574) 0
Fund Balance Begineing of Year (includes

Prior year encumbrances appropriated) 3,974 3.974 3.974 1]
Fund Balamz End of Year 52,000 30 50 50
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Loveland City School District

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance
Budget and Actual (Non-GAAP Budgetary Basis)

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2003

Summer
Iotervention
Fund

Criginal Final Variance from

Budpet Budget Actual Final Budget
Revenues:
Taxes $60,000 S0 s0 S0
Total Reveoues 60,000 1] 0 0
Elp:nd.rtl.trt:s
Current:

Imstruciion:

Regular 16,468 16,468 16,468 0
Total Expenditures 16,468 16,468 16,468 0
Net Change in Fund Balance 43,532 {16,468) {16,468) 0
Fund Balance Beginning of Year (includes

prior year cncumbrances appropriated) 16,468 16,468 16,468 1]
Fund Balance End of Year $60,000 $0 $0 S0
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Loveland City School District

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance

Budget and Actual (Non-GAAP Budgetary Basis)
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2003

Revenues:
Intergovernmental

Totat Revenucs

Expenditures:
Current:
Instruction-
Regular
Total Expendihures
Net Change in Fund Balance

Fund Balance Beginning of Year (includes
prior year encumtiances appropriated)

Fund Balance End of Year

Vocational
Education
Fund
Qriginal Final Variance from
Budgel Budpet Actual Final Budget
S0 $5,384 35,384 50
] 5384 5384 ]
7.874 7,874 5384 2,490
7,874 7.874 5384 2490
(7,874) {2.490) 0 2,490
0 1 0 0
(37,874) ($2,490) 50 $2,4%0
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Loveland City Schoo] Districi

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance
Budget and Actual (Non-GAAP Budgetary Basis)

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2003

Safe School
Hot Line
Fumd
Original Final Variance from
Budget Budget Actual Final Budget
Revenues:
Interpovernmental $3,600 $8,000 $8,000 S0
Teoinl Revenucs 3,600 8,000 8,000 0
Expenditures:
Current:
Instruction: ~
Regular 7,504 7,804 7,804 1]
Support Services:
Pupil 3,882 3.8%2 1,882 ]
Instructional Staff 1,782 1,782 1,762 0
Total Expenditures 13,468 13,468 13,468 0
Net Change in Fuod Balance {9,868) (5,468) (5,468) 0
Fund Balmmece Beginning of Year (includes
prior year encumbrances appropriated) 5468 5,468 5468 0
Fund Balance End of Year (54,400} 50 S0 30
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Loveland City School Disticl

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance

Budget and Actual (Non-GAAP Budgetary Basis)
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2003

Revenues:
Intergovernmental

Total Revenucs
Expenditures:
Current-
Suppont Services:
Instructional Staff
Community Services
Total Expenditures
Net Change in Fund Balance

Fund Balance Beginning of Year (includes
prior year encumbrances appropriated)

Fund Balance End of Year

Eisenhower
Grant
Fund
Original Final Variance from
Budpet Budget Actml Final Budpet
$7.000 $1,610 $1,576 (534)
7,000 1,610 1,576 {34)
9,440 11,014 10,980 34
222 258 258 0
9,662 11272 11,238 34
(2,662) (9.662) (9,662) 0
9,662 9,662 9,662 0
$7,000 30 $0 50
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Loveland City School District

Schedule of Revenucs, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance

Budget and Actual (Non-GAAP Budgetary Basis}

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2003

Revenucs:
Intergovernm ental

Total Revenues

Expendimres:
Current:
Instruction:
Special
Supportt Services:
Pupil
Instructional Saff
School Administration
Community Services

Total Expenditures
Excess of Revenues Over (Under) Expenditures

Other fmancing sources {uses):
Advances In

Tota] Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Net Change in Find Balance

Fund Balance Begioning of Year (includes
prior year encumbrances approprialed)

Fund Balance End of Year

Title VI-B
Preschaoal
Fund
Original Final Variance from
Budpet Hudgel Actual Final Budget
$150,768 $364,350 $274,661 ($89.689)
150,768 3164 350 274,661 {89,689}
68,400 74,288 72,095 2,193
' 150,297 158,417 158,417 0
108,715 114,588 114,588 ]
30 32 32 0
24,127 25431 25,431 0
351,569 372,756 370,563 2,193
{200,801) {8.406) ' (95,902} {87.496)
49,232 0 89,689 89,689
49,232 0 89,685 89,689
{151,569) {8,406) {6,.213) 2,193
6214 6,214 6,214 0
{$145,355) (82,192} §1 §2,193
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Loveland City School District

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Chenges in Fund Balance
Budget and Actual (Non-GAAP Budgetary Basis)

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2003

Carl Perkins
Fund

Original Final Variance from

Budget Budgel Actual Final Budget
Revenucs:
Intergovernmental 5$7.000 $6,179 $6,17% 50
Tatal Revenues 7,000 6,179 6.179 0
Expenditures:
Cwrrent:

Instruction:

Regular 6,239 - 6,239 6,219 1
Total Expenditures 6239 5,239 623% 0
Net Change in Fund Balance 761 (60) 0 (]
Fund Belance Beginning of Year {includes

prior year cncumbrances appropriated) &0 60 &0 ]
Fund Balance End of Year $821 30 50 50
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Loveland City School District

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance

Budget and Actual (Non-GAAP Budgelary Basis)

For the Fiscal Year Ended Junc 30, 2003

Revennes:
Interpovernmental

TFolal Revenues
Expenditures:
Curent:
Instruction:
Special
Support Services:
Instructional Seaff
Total Expenditures
Excess of Revenues Over (Under) Expenditures

Onher mancing sources (uses):
Advances In

Total Other Financing Soarces {Uses)
Net Change in Fund Balance

Fund Balance Beginning of Year {includes
prior year encumbrances appropriated)

Fund Balance Fnd of Year

Title 1
Fund
Original Final Variance from
Budget Budget Actual Final Budget
5311811 5239810 3226,592 (§13.218)
311,811 219,810 226,592 (13218)
233350 233,350 233,350 0
12,000 12,000 12,000 0
245350 245,350 245330 0
66,461 (5.540) (18.758) (13,218}
18,189 0 13,218 13,218
18,189 0 13218 13,218
84,650 (5,540) (5,540) 0
5,540 5,540 5,540 0
$50,190 50 50 50
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Loveland City School District

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance
Budget and Actual (Non-GAAP Budgetary Basis)

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2003

Title VI
Fund

Criginal Final Variance from

Budget Budget Actual Final Budget
Revenues:
Intergovernmental §7.661 535,845 $14,454 (§21391)
Total Revenues 7,661 35.845 14,454 {21,391)
Expenditures;
Cument:

Instruction:

Regular 22303 18,005 28,114 (10,109)
Special 8,288 20,479 10,447 10,032

Support Services: -

Pupil 2,856 3,600 3,600 1]
Instructional Staff nz 4¥) 400 ]

Community Services 3,690 4,728 4,651 77
Total Expenditures 37,454 47,212 47212 0
Excess of Revenues Over (Under) Expenditures {29,793) {11367% {32,758) (21,3°91)
Other financing sowrces (uses):

Advences In 11,339 0 21,351 21,391
Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) 11,339 0 21,391 21,391
Net Change in Fund Balance {18,454) (11,367 {11,367 0
Fund Balance Beginning of Year (inclodes

prior year encurabrances appropriated) 11,367 11,367 11,367 0
Fund Balance End of Year (57,087) 50 $0 30
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Loveland Ciry School District

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance

Budget and Actual (Non-GAAP Budgetary Basis)

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2003

Revenues:
Interpovernmental

Total Revenues

Expendinmes:
Cuarrent
Instruction:
Regular
Support Services:
Pupil
Comemmnity Services

Total Expenditures
Excess of Revenues Qver (Under) Expenditures
Other Anancing sources (uses):
Advances In
Advances (Out)
Totzl hher Financing Sources (Uses)

Net Change in Fund Balance

Fund Balanee Begiming of Yeaur {includes
prior year encumbrances appropriated)

Fund Balance End of Year

Drug Free
Schools
Fimd
Orignal Final Variance from
Budpet Budget Actual Final Budget
510,873 519,593 516395 ($3.158}
10,873 19,593 16,395 {3,198)
26,445 35,290 36,601 2,689
428 1,000 593 107
32l 444 444 0
27,194 40,134 17,638 3,095
(16,321} {21,141) (21,243} (102)
9,127 0 13,761 13,761
{7631} 0 (10,562} {10,562}
1,496 0 3,199 3,199
{14,825) (21,141) {18,044) 3,097
18,044 18,044 18,044 0
53219 {$3.097) 30 33,097
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Loveland City School District

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance

Budger and Actual (Non-GAAP Budpelary Basis)

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2003

Revenues:
Intergovernmental

Total Revenues

Expenditures:
Ciuorent:
Svpport Scrvices:
Pupil
Tolal Expenditures
Excess of Revenues Over (Under} Expenditures

Oiber financing sources {uses):
Advanees In

Total Oiher Financmg Sources (Uses)
Net Change in Fund Balance

Fund Balance Beginning of Year (includes
prior year encumbrances appropriated}

Fund Balance End of Year

EHA
Preschool
Fund
Original Final Variance from
Budgel Budget Actual Final Budget
$3.080 $13,083 51,663 (§5.420)
3,080 13,083 3,663 {9,420)
13,083 13,083 13,083 0
13,083 13,083 13,083 0
{10,003) o (9,420 {9,420)
7,920 4] 9,420 9,420
7,520 0 9,420 5,420
{2,083) 0 0 o
0 0 0 0
(52.083) 50 50 50
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Lovetand City School District

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance
Budget and Actual (Non-GAAP Budgetary Basis)

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2003

Telecomm
Act
Fund
Original Final Variance from
Budget Budget Actual Final Budpet
Revenues:
Intergovernmental S0 54238 34,238 30
Total Revenues 0 4,238 . 4 238 0
Expenditures:
Currenl:

Instruction:

Regular - 0 0 1] ]
Total Expenditures 0 - 0 0 0
Excess of Revenues Over (Unda) Expenditures Q 4238 4,238 1]
Chher fnancmg sources (uses):

Transfers {Qut) {9,728) {13,966) {13,966) 0
Tota! Other Financing Sources (Uses) (9,728) (13,966) (13,966) Q
Net Change in Fund Balance (9,728) (9,728) (9,728) 0
Fund Balanee Beginning of Year {includes

prior year cncumbrances appropriated) 9,728 9,728 9,728 0
Fund Balance End of Year 0 50 50 50
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Loveland City School District

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance
Budget and Actual (Non-GAAP Budgelary Basis)

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2003

Impraving
Teacher Quality
Fund

Original Final Vanagee from

Budget Budg_ct Actual Final Budpet
Revenues:
Intergovernmental $0 $112,059 §66,592 {$4546T)
Total Revenues 0 112,059 66,592 {45467)
Expenditures:
Cumrent

Instroction:

Regular 0 100,000 160,000 0

Support Services:

Instruciional Stff [1] 12,059 12,059 [
Total Expenditures 0 112,059 112,059 4]
Excess of Revenues Over (Unda) Expenditures 0 0 {45,467) (45467)
Other finaneing sources (uses):

Advances In 0 0 45467 45,467
Tatal Other Financing Sources (Uses) 0 0 45,467 45,467
Net Chanpe in Fund Balance 0 (] 0 0
Fund Balance Beginning of Year (includes

prior year encumbrances appropriated) 0 0 0 0
Fund Balance End of Year 50 50 50 $0
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Loveland City School District

Schedule of Revenucs, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance
Budget and Actual (Non-GAAP Budgetary Basis)

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2003

Continuons
Improvement Grant
Fund

Original Final Vanance from

Budget Budget Actual Final Budget
Revenues:
Intergovernmental 517,330 $27.04 522327 (54,727}
Total Revenues 17,330 21,05 22327 (4,727
Expepditures:
Current:

Special 9,013 20,488 20,488 D

Support Services:

Instructipnal Stafl’ 4,190 9,525 9,525 0

Central 2,888 6,566 6,566 0
Total Expendinres 16,091 36.579 36,579 0
Excess of Revenues Over (Under) Expendines 1,239 (9,525) {14,252) (4,727}
Qther finaneing sources {uses):

Advances In 3,670 0 4,728 4,728
Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) 3,670 4] 4,728 4,728
Net Chaoge in Fund Balance 4,909 (5,525} 9.524) !
Fund Palance Beginning of Year (mcjudes

prier year encumbrances appropriated) 9,525 9,525 9,525 0
Fund Balance End of Year 514,434 50 51 M
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Loveland City School District

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance

Budget and Actual (Non-GAAP Budgetary Basis)

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2003

Revenues:
Taxes
Intergovemmental

Total Revenucs

Expendihmes:
Curreat:
Support Services:
School Administration
Fiscal
Debt Service:
Principal Retirement
Interest and Fiscal Charges

Total Expenditures
Net Change in Fimd Balence

Fund Balance Beginning of Year (includes
prior year encumbrances appropmiated)

Fund Balance End of Year

Debt
Service
Fund
Original Final Variance from
Budpget Budget Actual Final Budpet
33,525,994 53,503,558 83,767,867 5264309
459.503 481,939 451,023 5,084
3,985,497 3.985497 4,258,890 273,393
5113 5113 5113 0
48,147 48,150 48,150 0
2,033,000 2,031,000 2,033,000 a
1,842,884 1,843,143 1,843,143 0
3,929,144 3,929,406 3,920,406 1]
56,353 56,091 329,484 273,393
2,836,216 2,836,916 2,836,916 0
§2,893,269 52,893,007 §3,166,400 $273,393

98



Loveland City School District

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance
Budget and Actual (Non-GAAP Budgetary Basis)

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2003

Permancent
Improvement
Fund

Original Final Variance from

Budpet Budpet Actual Final Budget
Revenues:
Taxes $0 50 50 50
‘Total Revenoes 0 0 0 0
Expenditures:
Current:

Support Sexvices:

Pupil Transportation 482,346 510,377 510377 0
Capital Outlay 24234 35,459 25,642 13,817
Total Expenditures 506,580 549,836 536,019 13,817
Excess of Revenues Over {Under) Expenditures {506,580) {549,836) {536,019} 13,817
Other fmancing sources (uses):

Transfers In 1] 71,056 83,064 12,008

Transfers {Out) (31,248) {21,056) {33,064) {12,008)
Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) {31,248) 50,000 50,000 0
Net Change in Fund Balance {537,828} {499,836) (486,019) 13,817
Fund Balance Beginning of Year (includes

prior year cocumbrrances appropriated) 487,828 487,828 487,828 0
Fund Balance End of Year {550,000} {$12,008) $1,809 313,817
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Loveland City School District

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance
Budget and Actual (Non-GAAP Budgetary Basis)

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2003

Building
Fiund

Original Final Variance from

Budget Budget Actual Final Budget
Revenues:
Taxes 50 50 30 50
Total Revenues 0 0 1] 1]
Expenditures:
Current:

Support Services:

Busipess 48,681 23,326 48,681 {25,355)
Capital Qutlay 6,022 6.022 6,022 0
Total Expenditures 54,703 29,348 54,703 {25,355)
Net Change im Fund Balance {54,703) (29,348) (54,703} (25,355)
Fund Balance Begumning of Year (includes

priar year encumbrances appropriated) 54,703 54,703 4,703 0
Fund Balance End of Year 50 $25,355 $0 {$25,355)
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Loveland City School District

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance
Budget and Actual (Non-GAAP Budgetary Basis)

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2003

SchoolNet
Fund

Original Final Variance from

Budget Budpet Acmal Final Budpet
Revenues:
lotergovernmental 50 $56,576 §56,.576 $0
Total Revenues 0 56,576 56,576 0
Expenditures:
Current:

Instruction:

Regular 1,993 56,576 56,576 0
Total Expenditures 1,993 56,376 56,576 1]
Net Change in Fund Balance {1,993) 0 0 0
Fund Balance Beginning of Year (mcludes

prior year encumbrances appropriated) 0 0 0 0
Fumd Balance End of Year {$1,990) 30 S0 S0
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Loveland City School District
Computalicn of Legal Debt Margin
June 30, 2003

Assessed Vohation of District

Overall Direct Debt Limilation

Direct debi limitation

9% of assessed valualion

Amount available in Debt Service Fund

Gross indebledness §39,608,734
Less: Debt exempt from limnation ¢

Debt subject to 9% limitalion
Legal debt margin within 926 limitation

Unvpted Direct Debt Limitalion

Unvoled debt limitation
©.1% of assessed valualion
Amount sveilable in Debt Service Fund

related to unvoted deb
Gross indebledness suthorized by the Board ¢
Less: Debt exemnpt from lomitntion 0

Debit subject to 0.1% limitation

Eegal debt morgin within 0.1%6 limitation

Encrgy Conservaticn Bond Limitation
Ohio Revised Code Section 133.042

Debl lomitetien
©0.9% of assessed valuation
Energy conservation notes suthorized
by the Board
Legal debt margin within 0.9% limilation

Source: Loveland City School District recards.
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TABLE 7

o SEUR060380
§54,275,434
4,282,740

(39.608,734)
$18,949,440

£603,060

]

$603,060

$5,427,543

0
§5,427,543



Loveland Cicy School District
Computation of Direct and Overlapping Debt
June 30, 2003

TABLE®

Pereent Amount
Gross General Applicable 10 Applicable to
Governmental Unit Obligation Distriet (1) District
Direct:
Loveland Cicy School District §38.170,734 100.00% $38,170,7M4
Overlapping:
Clermont County 519,468,000 7.29% $1,419,217
Hamilton County 130,790,000 1.75% 2,288,825
Warren County 4,010,370 0.18% 7220
City of Loveland 5,470,000 B9.63% 4,902,761
Goshen Township 100,000 6.11% 6,119
Miami Township 095,000 2541% 252,830
Symmes Township 791,500 27.47% 217425
Great Qaks Joint Yocational S/D 6,240,000 3.55% 221,520
Total overlapping: 5167,865,37¢ 55,315,908
“Toral direct and overlapping debi: $206,036,104 $47,486.642

Source:  Ohio Municipal Advisory Couneil

(1) Caleulated by the Ohio Municipal Advisory Council

110



Loveland City School District

Ralio of Annual Debt Service Expenditures
For General Bonded Debt 10 Tote] General Fund Expenditures

Las1 Ten Fiscal Years

TABLE ¥

Total Ratio of Debt Service
Fiscal Total Debl General Fund to General Fund
Year (1) Service Expenditures Expenditures (%)
1994 $1,683,439 513,159,725 12.7%%
1995 1,672,886 14,342,620 11.66%
1996 1,661,161 15,239,638 10.50%
1597 1,648,069 16,681,323 9.88%
1598 1,493,226 . 18,171,726 832%
1999 1,536,542 20,410,282 7.53%
2000 3,662,997 24,015,895 1525%
2001 3,545,493 23,996,985 14.77%
2002 3,703,508 27,040,343 13.70%
2003 3,876,143 29,575,428 13.11%
Souree: Loveland City School Disirict records.
{n Fiscal Year 1997 is the first year reporied on a GAAP basis.

All prior fiscal years are reporied on a cash basis.
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Loveland City Scheol Districi
Demographic Statistics
Lasl Ten Years

Populalion

Houscholds

Average Houschold Income
Average Home Value

Population by Eduealion

Completed 4+ Years of College.

QOceupation
While Collar Workers
Blue Callar Waorkers

Source: Estimates provided by the City of Loveland based on Census data.

1992-1994 1995-1999
9,930 12,882
3,446 4,463
544,876 $54,299
$97,679 $109,694
1,485 1,693
3ne 4,214
1,268 1,458

Data is for the City of Loveland. Data for the Disirict only was not aveilable.

* Informalion no1 available
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Loveland City School District TABLE 1]
Construction, Bank Deposits and Property Values

Last Ten Calendar Years
Bank
Dicposits (2) Propetty
Calendar Year Construclion (1} {in Thousands) Values (3)
1594 513,613,000 §15,290,052 5263,699,590
1995 7,995,000 17,301,493 288,692,430
1996 11,834,000 1B,661,138 310,577,660
1997 885,000 21,598,936 359,013,820
1998 10,797,000 18,070,437 376,071,340
1559 20,000,000 24,305,322 404,859,700
2000 15,000,000 41,302,569 508,129,95%
2001 7,519,000 78,562,782 528,036,170
2002 4,000,000 133,726,320 540,668,800
2003 13,268,000 149,280,002 603,060,380
Sources: {1} City of Loveland, Ohio.

{2) Tolal deposits of 1l banks headguartered in Hamilion County, Ohia.
{includes national and state chartered banks) Data was not available for
the District only. Federal Reserve Bank, Cleveland, -

(3) Hamilton, Clamont and Warren County Auditers, calendar year basis.
Resl property nssessed values.
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Loveland Cily School District TABLE 12

Real Propety
Top Ten Principal Taxpayers
June 30, 2003
% of Towl
Real Assessed
WName of Taxpayer Property Valuation
CINERGY §4,154,150 0.69%
Asrowhead Apartments Led. 3,545,570 0.59%
Clermont Golf Lid. 2,832,230 ‘ 0.47%
Zicka Properties 2,080,450 0.34%
Desr Ridge Partners Lid . 1,887,100 0.31%
Loveland-Pierce Lid 1,678,360 0.28%
Cincinoati Bell 1,452,110 024%
Shoppers Hoven Partnership 1,238,5%0 0.21%
Lovelend Propertics 1,097,650 0.18%
Kossman-Loveland-Mndeir 1,029,980 0.18%
$20,996,230 3.45%

Source:  Hamilton, Clermont and Wamren County Audilors.
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88 Fast Broad Street
P.O. Box 1140

Auditor of State Columbus, Ohio 43216-1140
Telephone  614-466-4514
Betty Montgomery P 400.282.0370

Facsimile  614-466-4490

LOVELAND CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT

HAMILTON COUNTY

CLERK'S CERTIFICATION
This is a true and correct copy of the report which is required to be filed in the Office
of the Auditor of State pursuant to Section 117.26, Revised Code, and which is filed
in Columbus, Ohio.

desan Toubbitt

CLERK OF THE BUREAU

CERTIFIED
APRIL 6, 2004
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